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Financial Highlights

MEGRE

For the year ended 31 March HE3A31B L5 E

2014 2013 Change 21k
Operating results RExE
Gross margin (%) EFIE (%) 17.1% 203%  -3.2%pts B2
Operating profit margin (%) FEE T (%) 5.1% 87%  -3.6%pts B Eh
Net profit margin (%) AT 2 (%) 4.1% 7.1%  -3.0%pts &2
Return on equity holders (%) & & B (%) 7.8% 143%  -6.5%pts B2
Financial position B AR R
Total assets (HK$'000) mEE(TET) 1,152,835 1,193,025 -3.4%
Cash and bank deposits (HK$'000) BRe RFTER(TET) 468,852 453,432 3.4%
Bank borrowings (HK$'000) HRITBE(TAERT) - 42,138 -100%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) MR (FE7T) 803,630 800,013 0.5%
Financial Ratio B =
Current ratio (Times) MBI & () 3.0 2.8 7.1%
Quick ratio (Times) RB) L (fF) 2.4 2.2 9.1%
Gearing ratio (%) BELE (%) - 53%  -5.3%pts B2
Turnover ratio B R
Inventory turnover (days) FERE(R) 51 49 4.1%
Debtors turnover (days) JEUERREE(H) 61 59 3.4%
Creditors turnover (days) FEFSERAE(H) 48 46 4.3%
Operating cycle (days) LERAER(A) 64 62 3.2%
Dividends per share (HK cents) FRERE GEL) 15.0 19.0 -21.1%
Interim  Hf 4.0 3.0 33.3%
Final REP 5.0 5.0 -
Special Rl 6.0 11.0 -45.5%
HK$ millon & &4 7T HK$ millon B&# 7T HK cent &1l
g0 804
1,606 1595 U
1,306 , 2 e
1,224 ”
913 10
6
o
1
5
5 5 5 5
3 3 3 3 ¢
Intertim 65 58 Final 28 special #57
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The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive

Financial Summary

HERE

NTRELSEXRERAERAB(ARA]) REH

income and consolidated statement of financial position of Fujikon Industrial BRAF 242 ENERMGAMERIRZBE:
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries:
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income SEEEWESE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 1,525,276 1,605,551 1,305,943 1,223,641 913,229
Cost of sales HERK AR (1,265,028) (1,280,150) (1,075,889) (1,039,813) (729,664)
Gross profit EH 260,248 325,401 230,054 183,828 183,565
Other gains/(losses) — net Hib gz, (BE) — F8 4,466 14,890 (1,834) 1,093 74
Distribution and selling expenses 7 # &S5 &E F (20,684) (24,956) (22,128) (26,724) (19,046)
General and administrative — M RATERE
expenses (166,518) (176,269) (134,540) (115,983) (102,753)
Operating profit R 77,512 139,066 71,552 42,214 61,840
Finance income MEWA 5,197 6,363 4,558 3,048 1,481
Finance costs BB R AR (1,414) (2,621) (4,373) (3,409) (1,067)
Profit before income tax B PSR & A 81,295 142,808 71,737 41,853 62,254
Income tax expenses ISt (15,352) (23,926) (11,910) (6,496) (7,260)
Profit for the year F R 65,943 118,882 59,827 35,357 54,994
Attributable to: 5B
Equity holders of the Company NAGIREERE A 62,318 114,312 56,447 30,008 51,142
Non-controlling interests eI B MR 3,625 4,570 3,380 5,349 3,852
65,943 118,882 59,827 35,357 54,994

2018/2014 £ BEISBXERERAT 3



Financial Summary
HBRE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position SERMBRRTR
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets EMENE E
Property, plant and equipment S EN e 239,129 208,813 196,191 200,146 203,891
Investment properties REME 3,120 2,860 1,900 1,890 1,600
Land use rights T A 9,864 9,988 10,217 10,135 23,090
Non-current deposits and SEREEE R
other assets HthEE 5,202 7,504 - - -
Available-for-sale financial AR ENEEAE
assets 1,067 4,604 7,249 7,741 7,513
Deferred income tax assets RIS EE 4,189 238 208 - -
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 262,571 234,007 215,765 219,912 236,094
Current assets MEEE
Inventories lEST 164,579 188,262 158,902 158,491 104,978
Trade receivables e E 5K 222,835 282,902 236,452 247,453 163,723
Other receivables H b fE U T 22,280 29,627 17,069 13,294 24,006
Derivative financial instruments MTELRTA - 121 164 326 171
Other financial assets at fair BATEFABER
value through profit or loss H i B 7% & B 8,984 4,633 54,032 56,883 73,885
Available-for-sale financial AL ERKEE
assets 1,266 - - - -
Current income tax recoverable Al el & BB R 15 80 1,468 41 1,873 1,612 720
Pledged bank/fixed deposits BEMBITERTEHEFX - 11,499 - - 6,810
Cash and cash equivalents HENEESEEY 468,852 441,933 425,391 352,599 385,407
Total current assets mEEEME 890,264 959,018 893,883 830,658 759,700
Current liabilities mBEE
Trade payables FEER 163,028 168,227 151,656 134,261 96,786
Accruals and other payables FEETE A I o FE 3R 113,032 107,797 83,169 80,164 80,872
Derivative financial instruments MELRTA 6,834 = = = -
Current income tax liabilities EHFMEHAR 18,205 27,730 21,368 19,155 16,776
Bank borrowings RITEE - 42,138 40,541 41,469 26,107
__Total current liabilities nBaEeE 301,099 345892 . 296,734 275,049 220,541
_Netcurrentassets RPEEFE 589,165 613,126 597,149 555,609 539,159
Total assets less current liabilities 42&ERRENBE 851,736 847,133 812,914 775,521 775,253
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Financial Summary

BEERE
Consolidated Statement Of Financial Position (Continued) #HREBMIBARRT (&)
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income EIEUA - 494 1,864 2,064 1,986
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISHEE 1,967 759 575 613 1,132
__Total non-current liabilities FnBafERE 1,967 - 1,253 2,439 2,677 3,118
Net assets BESFE 849,769 845,880 810,475 772,844 772,135
Equity s
Capital and reserves attributable % & 22X 7] f& 12
to the Company s FAAZRAR
equity holders K f#E
Share capital P& 41,986 41,244 41,014 41,014 40,639
Other reserves HMEE 244,820 228,761 217,517 204,000 186,060
Retained earnings IRER & F
— Proposed dividends —EERE 37,787 49,880 61,521 20,507 32,803
— Others —Hi 479,037 480,128 444,406 461,784 468,688
803,630 800,013 764,458 727,305 728,190
Non-controlling interests FEAE GBI R 46,139 45,867 46,017 45,539 43,945
Total equity Eamast 849,769 845,880 810,475 772,844 772,135

2013/2014 F3k
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Chairman’s Statement

FRBE

Johnny Yeung £
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

FRERITHAE
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To our shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present the
annual results of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“Fujikon” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The improving economic conditions in the United States have led to conflicting
concerns of the Federal Reserve gradually winding down of the economic
stimulus. As a result, a small fraction of the electro-acoustic industry has
adopted a more defensive posture, wary of a possible weakening in consumer
sentiment as well as rising interest rates. This defensive stance, combined with
the consolidation of the market, an increase in provision for obsolete inventory
and one-off impairment loss caused by flooding, has placed pressure on our
financial performance. Nonetheless, riding on solid our ties with many of the
top brands in the electro-acoustic industry and the healthy growth of our major
customers, we remain in a strong position. This strength is most evident in an
increase in both the quantity and quality of research projects conducted as well
as the expanded patent portfolio during the reporting year.

We recognise that sustained commitment to development of new products with
cutting-edge technology is the key to forging a closer bond with our customers.
Over the past twelve months, we have not wavered from this commitment.
Consequently, this has been a fruitful year for turning our innovations and
technology platforms into commercialised products. We have applied for
a number of patents to strengthen and protect our intellectual properties.
Moreover, Fujikon has strengthened our leadership in developing applications
incorporating various wireless technologies, including Bluetooth and Near Field
Communication. It is no wonder then that leading brands choose us as a partner
when they want to introduce state-of-the-art headphones and headsets.

Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

HBMNVRER :
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Aside from our continued investments in production, industrial engineering and
various technologies, we enjoy another important competitive advantage —
efficiency. Our adoption of the SAP Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP) system
has enabled all units and operations of the Group to be improved as well as
more effective strategies to be formulated and better decisions to be made. The
ERP system also enables a quicker rollout of products in response to changing
market conditions as well as cost-savings. And now with the integration of
the task and content management system currently underway, we are further
enhancing our business processes through closer collaboration with our
customers and business partners.

Moving forward, Fujikon remains fully committed to maintaining our position
as a leading global electro-acoustic group and bolstering our position in the
mid- to high-end products segment. We believe that the expected ongoing
consolidation of the handsets and headphones industry will eventually force the
weaker players out of the market. This consolidation should encourage more
aggressive product development efforts by many of the top-tier brands to seize
a larger market share, creating greater business opportunities to the Group to
exploit our expertise in cutting-edge technologies. In addition, we will also offer
our patented technologies exclusively to those preferred customers enabling
them to better differentiate their products, while we build stronger business ties
with them. By forging closer bonds, we can better enhance the profitability of
the Group and overcome market challenges. Not content to rest on our laurels,
we will also leverage our proven business model and implement effective cost
control measures as our highly experienced management team leads sustained
growth momentum in the long run.

Dividends

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK5.0 cents per ordinary share and a special final dividend of HK4.0 cents per
ordinary share. Combined with an interim dividend of HK4.0 cents per ordinary
share and a special interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share already
paid, a total annual payout of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share will be distributed
to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Appreciation

| wish to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to the management
and the entire Fujikon workforce for their diligence and dedication during the
financial year. | would also like to extend my gratitude on behalf of the Group
to all of our business partners, shareholders and customers for their staunch
support. | fully expect Fujikon to continue to make substantial progress, spurred
on by the encouragement and endorsement from all of you.

Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Economic indicators point towards a gradual yet sustained economic recovery
in the United States. However, concerns remain about the Federal Reserve's
reduction of stimulus measures, such as quantitative easing, on the recovery.
Evidence of these concerns in the consumer electronics industry has been
the suspension orders by certain electro-acoustic brands, wary of a possible
weakening in consumption sentiment.

The Group has been able to leverage ties with its other long-standing business
partners and its revenue has only slightly dipped to HK$1,525.3 million (2013:
HK$1,605.6 million) for the year ended 31 March 2014. Gross profit was,
however, more noticeably affected, receding year-on-year to HK$260.2 million
(2013: HK$325.4 million). The decline was the result of a combination of factors.
Most important among these are the aforementioned suspension of orders,
leading to an increase in provision for obsolete inventory; a one-time impairment
loss incurred from flooding; and the increase in overall labour costs due to a rise
in rush orders. Profit attributable to equity holders was consequently affected,
slipping to HK$62.3 million (2013: HK$114.3 million) for the reporting year.
Basic earnings per share were HK14.9 cents (2013: HK27.9 cents).

BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Headsets and Headphones

The headsets and headphones business continued to constitute the core
business of Fujikon. During the reporting year, the business generated revenue
of HK$1,158.3 million (2013: HK$1,248.4 million), thus accounting for 75.9% of
total revenue raised by the Group.

During the year under review, the market has become crowded with new and
old brands alike resulting in industry consolidation. While the majority of the
Group's customers are established, leading industry brands, market saturation
has strained their growth. Some of the key customers experienced sales declines,
while others gained market share at the expense of peers by dramatically cutting
product prices to maintain competitiveness and market share. This has inevitably
affected their sales performance as well as the Group’s. To sustain business
growth in this challenging environment, these market leaders have exerted
tremendous effort to refresh their product lines to meet the ever-changing
market demand and differentiate themselves. Fujikon has met their needs with
its dedicated focus on new product and technology development. The results of
the Group's own efforts are apparent in its expanded patent portfolio and strong
product development pipeline. The Group believes Fujikon will buck the trend of
consolidation by becoming an important strategic partner of the leading brands.

AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBNRE DM

Accessories and Components

The accessories and components business remains an important part of the
Group's vertical integration efforts. For the year ended 31 March 2014, the
segment recorded revenue of HK$366.9 million (2013: HK$357.2 million) and
profit of HK$3.6 million (2013: HK$17.2 million), which were adversely affected
by intense competition and price pressure. To raise the competitiveness and
profitability of this business, the management is closely evaluating the product
mix and intends to restructure certain product lines as necessary.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the expected ongoing consolidation of the handset and
headphone industry may impact the Group's financial performance in the short
run, and may have been affected to some extent by the discontinuation of orders
for a specific product as announced on 6 June 2014, until the Group’s customers
regain ground from the consolidation. Indeed, many of Fujikon's market-leading
customers are poised to benefit from the trend and capture a larger market share
in the medium to long term as weaker players exit the market. By building on
its solid foundation, particularly in engineering and new product development,
Fujikon is confident it will remain as a preferred partner of these world-class
brands and achieve sustained organic growth riding on their business expansion
in the long run.

The Group's strategy is to leverage its expertise in technology applications to
meet the needs of these leading customers for both product and positioning
differentiation. The Group will selectively offer its patented technologies to
preferred customers, collaborating closely with them to develop signature
products. Apart from being a leading manufacturer of wireless headsets and
headphones incorporating Bluetooth and Near Field Communication (NFC)
technologies, Fujikon will continue to develop and integrate proprietary
technologies in its latest models and further enrich its patent portfolio. This
technology and intellectual property prowess will further enhance its attraction
as a strategic partner to leading brands, while also reducing dependence on
external solution providers.

Raising operational efficiency is another goal of Fujikon. Therefore, the Group
is extending the implementation of its SAP Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
system to more facets of its operations, including cost control and quality
management. Its task and content management system is now being configured
and has already yielded a number of benefits. Particularly noteworthy here is
the reduction in development time, enabling a quicker rollout of products in
response to changing market conditions as well as cost-savings. At the same
time, the Group also plans to upgrade its production facilities to meet its
customers' requirements.

10 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013/2014
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained at a strong financial position. Net current assets as at
31 March 2014 amounted to approximately HK$589.2 million (2013: HK$613.1
million). The Group's current and quick ratios were approximately 3.0 times (2013:
2.8 times) and 2.4 times (2013: 2.2 times), respectively.

The Group had cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$468.9 million as at 31 March 2014, representing an increase
of approximately 3.4% against approximately HK$453.4 million as at 31 March
2013. Approximately 72.5%, 24.4% and 2.2% of the total cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in Renminbi, US dollars and Hong Kong dollars
respectively, and the remainder were in other currencies. As at 31 March 2014,
the Group had aggregated banking facilities of approximately HK$273.8 million
(2013: HK$273.3 million) from several banks for loans and trade financing, with
an unused balance of approximately HK$273.8 million (2013: HK$231.2 million).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China with most
transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group
is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entities to which they relate.

The Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage such
exposure. The net fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts entered into
by the Group for managing the risk relating to monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies at 31 March 2014 was a liability of HK$6.8 million (2013:
an asset of HK$0.1 million). Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments
accounted for approximately HK$7.0 million (2013: HK$0.04 million) for the year
and such fair value losses does not have impact to the Group's real cash flow.

On the contrary, net realised gains from derivative financial instruments of
approximately HK$20.0 million (2013: HK$12.8 million) from derivative financial
instruments represent actual settlements under derivative contracts during the
year. Due to the appreciation of RMB during the year, the Group had net foreign
exchange losses of approximately HK$9.0 million (2013: gains HK$2.1 million).
If these net realised gains and net exchange losses were taken into account, the
Group's foreign exchange exposure was in net gains of approximately HK$11.0
million for the year, representing a decrease of approximately 26.0% against
approximately HK$14.9 million for last year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE DN
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBNRE DM

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2014, the Group employed a total of approximately 5,500
(2013: 6,400) employees. The staff costs (including the directors’ emoluments)
accounted for approximately HK$388.5 million (2013: HK$369.1 million) during
the year.

The Group has developed its human resources policies and procedures based
on performance and merit. Employees are rewarded on a performance-related
basis within the general framework of its salary and bonus system. Discretionary
bonus is linked to the profit performance of the Group as well as individual
performance. Benefits include staff accommodation, medical schemes, share
option scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund for employees in Hong Kong and
state-sponsored retirement plans for employees in Mainland China. The Group
has also developed training programs to its management and employees to
ensure they are properly trained.

Financial Guarantee

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had provided corporate guarantees of
approximately HK$155.7 million (2013: HK$155.7 million) to several banks to
secure banking facilities of its subsidiaries. No facilities were utilised by the
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$37.2 million).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Director

Mr. YEUNG Chi Hung, Johnny, M.H., aged 69, is a co-founder of the
Group. He has been the Chairman and the executive Director since 2000 and
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 October 2011.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group. He is instrumental in the formulation and
implementation of the business policies of the Group. Mr. Yeung was elected
the Honorary Fellowship 2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries, Directors of The Year Awards 2007 (executive Director):
Listed Companies (SEHK — Non Hang Seng Index Constituents) by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. In 2014, he was awarded the University
Fellow of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, re-elected the Industrial
Fellow of Warwick University and was awarded the Medal of Honour (“M.
H.”) by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government on 1
July 2014. Mr. Yeung has over 40 years of experience in the electronics
and acoustics industry. In addition, Mr. Yeung is the Vice President of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the Chairman of Hong
Kong Electronics Industries Association and the Honorary Chairman & the
Vice Chairman of Dongguan Electronics Industries Association, the President
of Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment Humen
Branch, the Chairman of Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board
of the Vocational Training Council and a Current Advisor of the 47th Yan
Chai Hospital Board Office. Mr. Yeung is the father of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung,
Ben, the executive Director of the Company.

Mr. YUEN Yee Sai, Simon, aged 72, is a co-founder of the Group. He has
been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director since 2000. Mr.
Yuen is responsible for the overall strategic planning of production and
operation related affairs of the Group. He was elected the Associateship
2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr.
Yuen has over 40 years of experience in the electronics industry and has in
depth knowledge of trading in the PRC. In addition, he is a Vice Chairman
of the Committee of the Association of Foreign Investment Enterprises of
Dongguan City, Honorary Citizen of Dongguan City and Humen Town, a Vice
Chairman of Dongguan Overseas Friendship Association. Mr. Yuen is the
father of Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman, the executive Director of the Company.

Mr. CHOW Man Yan, Michael, aged 65, is a co-founder of the Group. He
has been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director of the Group
since 2000. He is responsible for the overall strategic planning of purchasing
related affairs of the Group. Mr. Chow was elected the Associateship 2004
by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. He has over
40 years of experience in the electronics and acoustics industry, especially in
production and material management and inventory control. Mr. Chow is the
brother of Ms. Chow Lai Fung, the executive Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREERERE

Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. YUEN Chi King, Wyman, aged 39, is an executive Director of the Group.
Mr. Yuen joined the Group in August 2006 and is responsible for overseeing
the implementation of corporate strategy and the financial functions of the
Group. Mr. Yuen graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada with a
Bachelor degree of Commerce and from Saint Louis University, United States
of America with a Master degree of Finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yuen has worked for a few regional financial securities institutions and was
responsible for the provision of corporate finance advisory services. Mr. Yuen
has more than 7 years of experience in financial securities industry and he
is @ member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Yuen was appointed as an independent non-executive director and a member
of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee of Pak Tak International Limited (a company listed on the Main
board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) in September 2009. Mr. Yuen is the
son of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, the Joint Deputy Chairman of the Company.

Mr. YEUNG Siu Chung, Ben, aged 38, is an executive Director and Chief
Strategy Officer of the Group. In November 2002, Mr. Yeung joined Fujikon
Industrial Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, in which he served
in numerous sales and marketing and project management positions for
about 3 years. Mr. Yeung re-joined the Group as an executive Director in
August 2007 and is responsible for overseeing the business development
functions and implementing the corporate strategy of the Group. He holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from Yale University in the
United States of America and a Bachelor of Science degree in International
Business from Pepperdine University in the United States of America. Mr.
Yeung has more than 10 years of working experience in an engineering and
marketing capacity. Mr. Yeung was elected 2013 Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong. In addition, he is a member of the National Committee of
CPPCC of Sihui County, a member of the Youth Committee of Beijing Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association (Hong Kong), a member of the Youth Officer
of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry & Commerce Association, a member of
the Young Executive Council of Federation of Hong Kong Industries and a
Current Advisor of 47th Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. He is the son of Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, who is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

Ms. CHOW Lai Fung, aged 50, is an executive Director of the Group. Ms.
Chow joined the Group in March 2001 and was appointed as executive
Director with effect from 1 August 2007. She is the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of the Group. She graduated from the University of
Missouri- Kansas City, United States of America with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Accounting. She has over 20 years of experience in management,
accounting and finance. Ms. Chow is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is the sister of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, the Joint
Deputy Chairman of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. CHANG Chu Cheng, aged 70, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company from March 2000 to March 2014 cumulatively 14
years of service. Dr. Chang resigned on 1 April 2014.

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company on 1 April
2014.

Dr. Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom and a Doctor of Business Administration Degree
from City University of Macau. He was appointed as an Industrial Professor
by the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in December 2010. He was
awarded an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration by the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2007 and an Honorary Doctorate Degree by the
University of Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia in 2006. He was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government on 1 July 2011. He was appointed as
Justice of Peace by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government
on 1 July 2005 and won the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award in 1997.

Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement of industry and was the
Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July 2011 to July
2013. In addition, Dr. Chung holds positions on a number of Hong Kong
SAR Government advisory committees and is also an active member of many
social committees and associations.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and non-executive director of Techtronic Industries
Company Limited (stock code: 669)(“Techtronic”), a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He is also an independent non-executive director of TK Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283), Kin Yat Holdings Limited (stock code:
638) and KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited (stock code: 3816), all listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREERERE

Independent Non-executive Director (Continued)

Mr. CHE Wai Hang, Allen, aged 46, had been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company for 4 years since March 2000. On June 2005, Mr.
Che re-joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from
The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Che was admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1993 and also became as a member of The
Law Society of Hong Kong in the same year. Mr. Che has been practicing as
a solicitor in Hong Kong over 20 years and is currently a partner of Wong,
Hui & Co., Solicitors.

Mr. LEE Yiu Pun, aged 52, has been an independent non-executive Director
since June 2005. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor of commerce degree majoring
in accounting and marketing from the University of Calgary, Canada. He
is currently a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lee worked as the group financial controller of
S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited from 1994 to 1999, the financial controller
of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited from 1999 to 2000, and deputy
finance director of Henderson China Holdings Limited from 2000 to 2001, all
of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee is currently
the vice president of finance of a private group of companies.

Senior Management
Mr. MAN Yu Ming, aged 74, is the Managing Director of Fujikon Packing
Material Company Limited. He joined the Group in July 1987.

Mr. LEUNG Shiu Ki, aged 48, Managing Director of Fujikon International
Limited. He joined the Group in October 1991.

Mr. CHEUNG Ying Chun, aged 61, is the Managing Director of Fujikon
Precision Metal Products Limited. He joined the Group in September 1988.

Mr. ZHU Jianhuan, aged 54, is the Managing Director of Zhejiang Fousine
Science & Technology Company Limited. He joined the Group in May 2000.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the
"“Company”) have the pleasure of presenting the annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Principal Activities and Segment Analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 10 to the audited financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment information is
set out in note 5 to the audited financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on page 47 of this annual report.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK4.0 cents per ordinary share and a special interim
dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share were paid during the year. The
Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per
ordinary share and a special final dividend of HK4.0 cents per ordinary Share
(the “Dividends”) which, subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”). The
Dividends are expected to be paid on or about 28 August 2014, to those
shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of Members of the
Company on 13 August 2014.

Other reserves

Movements in other reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in note 21 to the audited financial statements.

Share capital and share options

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company are set
out in notes 19 and 20, respectively, to the audited financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEEgWE

Distributable reserves

As at 31 March 2014, the Company's reserves of approximately HK$138,800,000
(subject to provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended))
and retained earnings of approximately HK$47,234,000 were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-laws and
the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$234,000.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 6 to the audited financial statements.

Retirement schemes

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 33 to the audited financial
statements.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the Group's financial information for the last five financial years is
set out on pages 3 to 5 of this annual report.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon
Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael
Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman
Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben
Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy (appointed on 1 April 2014)
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng (resigned on 1 April 2014)
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

Pursuant to bye-law 99 of the bye-laws (the "Bye-Laws") of the Company, Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan,
Michael will retire from the office of Directors by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting. Such Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the Annual General Meeting. According to the Listing Rules, a director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment. Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 April 2014 to fill the
causal vacancy of Dr. Chang Chu Cheng. Therefore, Dr. Chung will be eligible for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. All the other Directors
will remain in office.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors have an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

BEE
FARBEARSAMER EFTMT

BITES
HEMEEE
IR A A
A=k E
IRTESEE
BOBEE
FRR Lt

BAUFHTES

AR TIE T (201454 1 BIERT)
REIR BT (7A2014F4 A1 B BHE)
BHEELE

RBEARB 2 ABAR([RFHRI ) FE9E - HEH
£h - RMABEEREAXCEESNBRBERE £
WnREEERE - ZFEENAEBARENEER
BEREEEET - RELTAR - BREEHR
REREFANEZTRZEEBRRAS LEXK
FEE o SETETM014F4 A1 AEZEARE I
MITES  NAMREKEL ZREZER - At - &
BEEAEERNERERBFASEREE - R
PRIEERMEEER -

EERBEL

EEMETLEMNARRLEEAMBRR TSR —
FAKIEMBAELREECEEMERIN) 2 KEmR
BaK -

BYFHITES BN

ARRERESB LN TESRER AR AR SM
BERARES EmRA( EmRADE3BEEL 2
FEBUIEEREK  YRBMAEBLIFATEZTE
BINEL °

2018/2014 £ BT SEXZERER2T 19



Report of the Directors
EEEgWE

Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations

As at 31 March 2014, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
the following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Interests in the Company

BERTEARABREA TR LB S
ARZRH - AHRGRES 2 ES

201453 A31H - ARAESERFETBRAERSE
NEIKEBENR(TERBHFMPEGEH([FEHK
BAERBI) EEXVER) 2 B fn - MRERGD REHFT#EE
THERAREEF RAEEINEGMFEE &
offt - SRR EMBITAESEITREER HHEEST
AI(MEESFA D BERE RN AR REBHEZIMER
RNRN([BRET]) 2 EmTRE

RAERQT z2EH

Number of
underlying
Shares (in
respect of
share options)®

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (the “Shares”) EBRHEE

SREEI0ETZEBR(REDEE (RBREmS)

Interest of *Approximate

Beneficial Beneficiary controlled Beneficial percentage of

Name of Directors interest of a trust corporations Interests Total shareholding
£34 BiER EREs  RENEEER §y & BOKREM
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 15351 10,521,000 = 70,571,500 3,700,000 84,792,500 20.20%
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon J5 1 4 1,000 = 64,571,500@ 4,110,000 68,682,500 16.36%
Chow Man Yan, Michael 3= 8,355,000 = 70,571,5009 3,000,000 81,926,500 19.51%
Yuen Chi King, Wyman J5-F 4 - - - 4,420,000 4,420,000 1.05%
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben #5458 = 70,571,500 2 4,020,000 74,591,500 17.77%
Chow Lai Fung EEE| 1,020,000 = = 3,000,000 4,020,000 0.96%
Chang Chu Cheng 3RE51% 546,000 - - - 546,000 0.13%

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue (i.e.
419,859,000 ordinary shares) as at 31 March 2014.
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Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (Continued)

Interests in the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The 70,571,500 Shares are held by Loyal Fair Group Limited, a private limited
company wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd, which was in turn wholly
owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd was the
trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then beneficially owned by the Yeung Family
Trust, a discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family members of
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben. Golden Hope
Financial Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

2. The 64,571,500 Shares are held by Sky Talent Enterprises Limited, a private limited
company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

3. The 70,571,500 Shares are held by Asia Supreme Limited, a private limited company
beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

4. Dr. Chang Chu Cheng resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 1 April 2014.

5. Share options were granted to the Directors under the share option schemes of the
Company, details of which are separately disclosed under the paragraph headed
"Directors’ rights to acquire Shares or debentures” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 March 2014.

Information on share option schemes

The Company adopted share option schemes under which it may grant options
to eligible participants (including executive Directors) to subscribe for Shares
in the Company. Details of the schemes are set out in note 20 to the audited
financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August 2002,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme"”). At the annual
general meeting of the company held on 3 August 2012, an ordinary resolution
was passed for the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)
and the termination of the Old Scheme.
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Information on share option schemes (Continued)

Subject to the exercise periods, all options (to the extent not already exercised)

granted prior to the termination of the Old Scheme shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Old Scheme. As at 31 March 2014, no
options were granted under the New Scheme.

The principal terms of the New Scheme are as follows:

22

Purpose of the New Scheme

As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group.

Eligible participants of the New Scheme

Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive Director), any non-executive Director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest, and
any other party having contribution to the development of the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the New
Scheme and percentage to the issued share capital as at 31
March 2014

41,013,900 Shares (approximately 9.77% of the total issued share capital).

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Scheme

Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options in excess of
such limit must be separately approved by the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting.

The period within which the Shares must be taken up under
an option

A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the date of offer
of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to the
grantee thereof.
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Information on share option schemes (Continued)

6.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum period
required under the New Scheme for the holding of an option before it can
be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 on or before the date
of acceptance (which may not be later than 21 days from the date of
offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price
Being determined by the Directors and being not less than the highest of:

a.  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

b.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

c.  the nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 August 2012 (being the date of fulfilment of all
conditions on the adoption of the New Scheme).
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Directors’ rights to acquire Shares or debentures

As at 31 March 2014, movements in the share options granted to and held by
the Directors under the Old Scheme of the Company were as follows:

Number of underlying Shares

EEB ARG IES 2ER

R20145F3A31H @ RIEBEARRZETE

EERFBEZBREEHWT

RERO%E
Lapsed
Granted  Exercised  cancelled Subscription
Beginning of during during during End of price Date of
Name of Directors the year the year the year the year the year  per share grant Exercise period (dd/mm/yyyy)
L3
ESpfE B FRRE  FRAE AN/ F4 BRIKE RUBH THREB(B/B/E)
'000 000 '000 '000 000 (HKS)
T T TR T T ()
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny #5754 3,700 - - - 3,700 198 22/52007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note 1)(Hi7¥1)
410 - (410) - - 110 2832012 2810312013 - 2710312022 (Note 1)(Fi73£1)
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon JR1) £ 3,700 - - - 3,700 198 22/52007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note 1)(Hi7¥1)
410 - - - 410 110 2832012 2810312013 - 2710312022 (Note 1)(Fi73£1)
Chow Man Yan, Michael [&3= 3,700 - 700 - 3,000 198 22/52007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note 1)(Hi7¥1)
410 - (#10) - - 110 2832012 2810312013 - 271032022 (Note 1)(Fi73£1)
Yuen Chi King, Wyman J5-F4 400 - - - 400 198 22/52007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note 1)(Hi7¥1)
2,020 - - - 2,020 110 2832012 2810312013 - 2710312022 (Note 1)(Fi73£1)
2,000 - - - 2,000 110 2832012 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2022 (Note 2)(i7E2)
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben 15052 2,020 - - - 2,020 110 28312012 2810312013 - 2710312022 (Note 1)(Fi73£1)
2,000 - - - 2,000 110 28032012 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2022 (Note 2)(Hi7E2)
Chow Lai Fung EIZE[E] 2,020 - (1,020) - 1,000 110 2832012 2810312013 - 271032022 (Note 1)(Fi73£1)
2,000 - - - 2,000 110 2832012 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2022 (Note 2)(Hi7E2)
Total: £ : 24,790 - (2,540) - 22,250
Notes: bz

(1) The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.

(2)  The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of grant.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of

(1) ZEBREAETHRO AR —FRES -

2 =ERRERE

cSEEGul =) shgrdakd o E

B EXPrREESN Fiﬁq{_{ﬂﬁ%?ﬁ P NRBESEME
AT P B X R SRR A B S BB E R B - B

BTAH

its subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements to enable any
of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 35 to the audited
financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies
was a party and in which any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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Substantial shareholders’
underlying Shares of the Company

The following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares at 31 March
2014 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary Shares in issue which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in the register kept by the

interests in the Shares and

Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.
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*Approximate

percentage of

Name of shareholders Number of Shares Capacity interest

BRREB BREOEE 5 HBAERESHL

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited 64,571,500 Beneficial owner (Note 2) 15.38%
EmEa AFiEE2)

Asia Supreme Limited 70,571,500 Beneficial owner (Note 3) 16.81%
BmEAa A (FIEE3)

Loyal Fair Group Limited 70,571,500 Beneficial owner (Note 4) 16.81%
EmiEa AMIzEs)

Golden Hope Financial Limited 70,571,500 Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4) 16.81%
RAEHLEE 2 = (FsEd)

Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd 70,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) (Note 4) 16.81%
EFEAEEEEEARRSN) (Fi5E4)

Fidelitycorp Limited 70,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) (Note 5) 16.81%
EFEAEBIEFEABRIN) (BFIFES)

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen 5B 522+ 84,792,500 Interest of spouse (Note 6) 20.20%
Bi i 2 #E z (P3E6)

Ms. Leung Woon Yee M &2+ 68,682,500 Interest of spouse (Note 7) 16.36%
Aoz i (PRET7)

Ms. Cai Liting 2B I= 22+ 81,926,500 Interest of spouse (Note 8) 19.51%
BB 2 #E z (P3E8)

Ms. Zong Xiao Cui R/ 74 74,591,500 Interest of spouse (Note 9) 17.77%
Bo i 2 #E z (P3E9)

DJE Investment S.A. 31,932,000 Investment Manager (Note 10) 7.61%
B L (MEE10)

Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG 31,932,000 Investment Manager (Note 10) 7.61%
%8 4238 (F1EE10)

Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt 31,932,000 Investment Manager (Note 10) 7.61%
&R (PHEE10)

Mr. David Michael Webb 9,796,000 Beneficial owner 2.33%
EnEAA

Mr. David Michael Webb 27,964,000 Interest of controlled corporation (Note 11) 6.66%
AR 2 s (MEE11)

Preferable Situation Assets Limited 27,964,000 Beneflaal owner (Note 11) 6.66%
)

BamEA A KT

*

The percentage has been complied based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue (i.e. 419,859,000 ordinary shares) as at 31 March 2014.

20 (E1419,859,000/% & @ A% ) 5+ &
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* BB DR ARRR2014F3A31BEZETRG

BEERERAT 25



Report of the Directors
EEEgWE

Substantial shareholders’ interests in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1.

10.

Interests in the Shares and the underlying Shares stated above represented long
positions.

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.
Asia Supreme Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

Loyal Fair Group Limited was wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd, which
was in turn wholly owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun Property (PTC)
Ltd was the trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then beneficially owned by the
Yeung Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family
members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.
Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

Fidelitycorp Limited was the trustee of Yeung Family Trust, a discretionary trust
and the objects of which were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny,
including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen is the wife of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

Ms. Leung Woon Yee is the wife of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

Ms. Cai Liting is the wife of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

Ms. Zong Xiao Cui is the wife of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

DJE Investment S.A. held 31,932,000 Shares. DJE Investment S.A. was owned as

to approximately 81.0% by Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG, which was owned as to
approximately 68.5% by Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt.

These Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which was owned by Mr. David Michael Webb. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. David Michael Webb was deemed to be interested in all the Shares held
by Preferable Situation Assets Limited. Mr. David Michael Webb had an aggregate
interest in 37,760,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there was no
other person who had an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2014.
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Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 49% of the Group's total revenue and the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 23% of the Group's total purchases. The
largest customer to the Group accounted for approximately 14% of the Group's
total revenue. None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which,
to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) of the Company had an interest in these five largest customers and/or
these five largest suppliers.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2014 and is of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the
requirements of applicable laws, codes and regulations and that adequate
disclosure pursuant thereto have been made.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company's issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the Annual
General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board,

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERBE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and endeavours in following the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) of the “Corporate Governance Code” (the “"CG Code") as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the "Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company has complied with
the CG Code save the deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1,
explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

which is

Regarding the Listing Rules requirement, the management should provide
monthly updates to board members giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail to enable them to discharge their duties, the key business
issues and the financial performance of the Company has be made available
to the members of the Board on monthly basis from April 2012.

The Board of Directors

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategies, the
setting of appropriate strategic policies and internal control, and the
oversight of the operation and financial performance of the Group and
compliance with statutory and regulatory obligation.

The management of the Group, as delegated by the Board, are responsible
for execution of business strategies adopted, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures, and oversight
of the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed
manner, management provided Monthly Management Report which contain
year-to-date with summaries of financial performance and key events of the
Group. The Monthly Management Report gives board members a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board members to discharge their
duties.

The corporate governance duties are performed by the Board. Pursuant to
the terms of reference of the Board of Directors, the primary duties of the
Board in relation to corporate governance include introducing and proposing
relevant principles concerning corporate governance and reviewing and
determining the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and to ensure
the corporate governance practices in the Group are in line with the relevant
requirements.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors during the year under review and up
to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman

Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben

Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr Chung Chi Ping, Roy (appointed on 1 April 2014)
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng (resigned on 1 April 2014)
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The brief biographical information of each Director is set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
Annual Report. Save as disclosed therein, there is no other relationship

section in this

(whether financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships)
among the members of the Board.

During the year under view, the Board met the requirement of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term of one year. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws"”). According to Bye-Law 99,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr.
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. According to the Listing Rules, a
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment. Dr. Chung Chi
Ping, Roy was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 1 April 2014 to fill the casual vacancy of Dr. Chang Chu Cheng.
Therefore, Dr. Chung will be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Insurance

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in
respect of legal actions taken against the Directors. The Board reviews the
extent of the insurance cover every year.

Board and Committee Attendance

Each year, regular matters reserved for the Board include overall strategies
of the Group, annual budgets, financial statements, dividend policy,
corporate governance function and other major corporate activities. For
such purposes, the regular Board meetings are held four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings of the year are
scheduled in advance. Notices and accompanying board papers are circulated
with sufficient time to allow the Directors to prepare before meetings.

During the year under review, the chairman of the Board also met with
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of executive
Directors.

According to the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings. In the 2013 annual
general meeting, all Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, and
the external auditor of the Company attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions.

During the year, the Board held four meetings mainly to discuss and approve
the overall strategies of the Group; to review and monitor the financial
performance of the Group; to consider and approve the annual budgets, the
financial reports and corporate governance related policies of the Group. The
average attendance rate was approximately 94%.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Board and Committee Attendance (Continued)

Details of the attendance of each of the Directors at board meetings,
committee meetings and annual general meeting held for the year ended 31
March 2014 are set out in the table below:
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Executive Directors HITESE
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny T 414 - 212 n 11
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Yuen Chi King, Wyman RS 3/4 - - - n
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Directors
Chang Chu Cheng SRA K 3/4 212 12 1 n
Che Wai Hang, Allen BRE 4/4 212 212 n n
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Average attendance rate FHHBE 94% 100% 88% 100% 100%
Directors’ Training EE1EH

To assist the Directors to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, all Directors had attended
relevant seminar and courses. The costs for such training are borne by the
Company.

In April 2013, the Company has organised an inhouse training on topic of
“Inside information and to avoid a false market disclosure obligations for
a listed company”. Directors also attended seminars/conferences/forums
relevant to his/her professional duties as directors or self-study of the
publications issued by the regulators, professional bodies and corporate
lawyers during the year ended 31 March 2014.

Directors have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and have provided a record of
training they received during the year ended 31 March 2014 to the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, the chairman of the Company, is also the chief
executive officer of the Company. According to the Code Provision A.2.1, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. In view of Mr. Yeung has extensive
experience in the electronics and acoustics industry and is responsible for the
overall strategic planning and business development of the Group. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer
in Mr. Yeung provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership
to improve the Company's efficiency in decision-making and execution,
and effectively capture business opportunities. However, the Board will
periodically review the effectiveness of this arrangement and consider to
separate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer when it thinks
appropriate.

The responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer are as
follows:

The chairman is responsible to determine the overall strategic planning
and business development of the Group after consultation with the Board,
provide leadership for the Board on corporate and strategic planning,
ensure proper proceeding of the Board and encourage all Directors to have
active contribution to the Board's affairs. With the support from the Board’s
members, he manages to implement the major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board.

The chief executive officer, with support of the executive Directors, is
to manage and operate the Group's day-to-day business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy in August 2013 in compliance
with a new code provision on board diversity in the CG Code, which came
into effect on 1 September 2013. The Board recognises and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of the Company’s
performance. A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, regional and industry experience, background, race,
gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be taken into
account in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on merit while taking into account diversity.

The nomination committee of the Board will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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Board Committees

The Board has three committees, namely, the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee. All the Board committees are
empowered by the Board under their own terms of reference which have
been posted on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises all
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun (Chairman)

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy (since 1 April 2014)
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng (ceased on 1 April 2014)
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly defined in its terms of
reference which have been prepared and adopted according to the CG Code.
The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board and the
Company’s auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit.
It also reviews the Group's financial reporting prior to their approval by the
Board, the effectiveness of the external and internal audit, evaluation of
internal controls and risk management.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings to:

(1) review the results announcements, interim and annual reports of the
Company, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

(2) review the internal controls, risk management and financial matters of
the Group in pursuance of the terms of reference;

(3) review the reports from the auditor of the Company in respect of the
interim and annual financial statements; and

(4) make recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
auditor of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors, as follows:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman)

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy (since 1 April 2014)
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng (ceased on 1 April 2014)
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny

The duties of Remuneration Committee are clearly defined in its terms of
reference which have been prepared and adopted according to the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the review and
determination of the remuneration policies and packages for Directors
and senior management of the Company. The remuneration packages of
the executive Directors are stipulated in their service agreements with
the Company. Such packages, including basic salaries, director’s fee
and discretionary bonus, are determined by reference to their duties,
responsibilities and experience, prevailing market conditions and their
expected time spent and contributions on the affairs of the Company. The
emoluments of the independent non-executive Directors are determined with
regard to their estimated time spent on the affairs of the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings and
conducted the following activities:

—  to consider and approve the remuneration and service agreement of the
proposed independent non-executive Director; and

—  to review and approve the remuneration packages for each of the
Directors and senior management of the Company.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
comprises one executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy (since 1 April 2014)
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng (ceased on 1 April 2014)
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The Nomination Committee was established on 12 March 2012 with specific
written terms of reference which have been prepared in accordance with the
CG Code. Its duties include, to recommend to the Board on the appointment
of Directors, review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis, and assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors taking into account
the independence requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting or passed the
resolutions by means of written resolutions to:

review of the structure, size and composition of the Board;

—  review the independence of Independent non-executive Directors;

—  consider and make recommendation to the Board on adoption the
Board Diversity Policy, its measurable objective and the terms of
reference of Nomination Committee for the purpose of implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy; and

—  consider and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of the proposed independent non-executive Director.
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Auditor’ Remuneration

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
provided both audit and non-audit services to the Company for a total
remuneration of approximately HK$2,344,000. The relevant fee paid for
audit services amounted to approximately HK$1,736,000. The balance of the
remuneration related to the non-audit services which mainly included the
review of interim results, amounting to approximately HK$200,000; taxation
services, amounting to approximately HK$310,000; and other non-audit
services, amounting to approximately HK$98,000.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system
of internal control so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment and the
Company's assets are properly safeguarded. The system of internal control is
designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement, loss or fraud.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group through the Audit Committee and the internal
audit team of the Company. The Board has also considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’'s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors and senior management of the Group on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, all Directors and senior management
of the Group have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company's code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors and senior management throughout the year ended 31 March
2014.

The Board has also establish procedure for relevant employees, including
certain employees of the Company, certain directors or employees of it
subsidiaries who are considered to be likely to possess inside information
in relation to the Company or its securities (the “Relevant Employees”), in
respect of their dealings in the Company's securities.
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Disclosure Obligations Regarding Inside Information

In light of the new disclosure obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") with effect from
1 January 2013, the Board has established the following processes and
procedures across all relevant division(s) and department(s) of the Group for
complying with the disclosure obligations regarding “Inside Information”:

(i)  the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating potential inside
information to the Board; and

(i)  the responsibilities of officers in preserving the confidentiality of inside
information, escalating upwards any such potential information and
cascading down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff.

Directors’ and Auditor’'s Responsibilities for Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements of the Group.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor of the Company are set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report to the shareholders of the Company on
pages 43 to 44 of this annual report.

Shareholder’s Right

1. Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition

1.1 Shareholders have the right to requisition the Company to
convene a special general meeting in the manner prescribed by
and set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act.

1.2 Bye-Law 62 provides “The Board may, whenever it thinks
fit, convene a special general meeting, and special general
meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by
the Companies Act, and, in default, may be convened by the
requisitionists.” Pursuant to section 74 of the Companies Act,
Shareholders (“General Meeting Requisitionists”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
may requisition the Directors of the Company to forthwith proceed
duly to convene a special general meeting by depositing a written
requisition (“General Meeting Requisition”) at the registered
office of the Company.
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Shareholder’s Right (Continued)

1.

38

Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition (Continued)

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

The General Meeting Requisition must state the purpose of
the meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at
the meeting), and must be signed by the General Meeting
Requisitionists; the General Meeting Requisition may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
General Meeting Requisitionists.

The General Meeting Requisition shall be deposited at the
registered office and preferably, copied to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company and marked for the
attention of the board of Directors or the Company Secretary at
their respective address below:

Registered office of the Company

Canon's Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Head office and principal place of business of the Company
16th Floor, Tower 1

Grand Central Plaza

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

If the Directors fails to proceed to duly convene such meeting
within 21 days from the date of the deposit of General Meeting
Requisition as set out in the paragraph 1.2 above, the General
Meeting Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one half of their total voting rights, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of
the General Meeting Requisition. A meeting so convened by the
General Meeting Requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the General Meeting
Requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Board to duly
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the General Meeting
Requisitionists by the Company.
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Shareholder’s Right (Continued)

2. Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1

2.2

2.3

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
details of which are as follows:

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Address: 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555
Fax: (852) 2529 6087

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of the
Company at the following designated contacts, correspondence
addresses, email addresses and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Address: 16th Floor, Tower 1, Grand Central Plaza,
138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: cosec@fujikon.com ir@fujikon.com
(Company Secretary) (Investor Relations)

Tel: (852) 2605 5008 (852) 2688 8287

Fax: (852) 2694 1338 (852) 2694 1338

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from
the Company if it deems appropriate.
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Shareholder’s Right (Continued)

3.

40

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

3.1

3.2

3.3

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Section 79 of the Companies Act provides that, at the expense of
the Resolution Requisitionists (as defined in paragraph 3.2 below)
unless the Company otherwise resolves, it shall be the duty of
the Company on the requisition in writing by the Resolution
Requisitionists:

(a) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b) to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

"Resolution Requisitionists” means Shareholders making a
requisition under paragraph 3.1 above and shall constitute either:

(@) any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or

(b)  not less than one hundred Shareholders.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to
have notice of the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the
resolution or statement on each such Shareholder in any manner
permitted for service of notice of the meeting, and notice of any
such resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by giving
notice of the general effect of the resolution in any manner
permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of
the resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same
manner and, so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of
the meeting and, where it is not practicable for it to be served
or given at that time, it shall be served or given as soon as
practicable thereafter.
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Shareholder’s Right (Continued)

3. Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting (Continued)

3.4 Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to be
met before the Company is bound to give any notice of resolution
or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to section 80 of the
Companies Act, the Company shall not be bound to give notice
of any resolution or to circulate any statement as mentioned in
paragraph 3.1 above unless:—

(@) a copy of the requisition signed by the Resolution
Requisitionists, or two or more copies which between them
contain the signatures of all the Resolution Requisitionists,
is deposited at the registered office of the Company:—

(i) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting;
and

(ii) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one
week before the meeting; and

(b)  there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expense in
giving effect to the procedures in paragraph 3.1 above
(i.e. the giving of notice of resolution and/or circulation of
statement).

Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring notice
of a resolution has been deposited at the registered office of
the Company, an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy though
not deposited within the above-mentioned time shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

4. Procedures for propose a person for election as a
director

Pursuant to bye-law 103 of the Bye-laws of the Company, if a
shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for election as a
Director at any general meeting appointed for such election shall follow
the procedures as prescribed in Bye-law 103. Details of the procedures
for nomination of Directors for election are available on the websites
of the Company.
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Shareholder’s Right (Continued)

The relevant procedures are set out in the document titled “Shareholders’
Rights” and “Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director” which are available on the websites of the Company.

Relations With Shareholders

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors to keep them abreast of the Company's developments.
The Company also holds regular meetings with institutional shareholders.

To ensure effective communication with shareholders, the Company has
adopted a formal shareholders Communication Policy to ensure that
shareholder are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance
and risk profile), in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment community
to engage actively with the Company.

The Company maintain a corporate website (www.fujikon.com) to keep our
shareholders and the investing public posted of the Company’s business
developments and operations, list of directors and their role and function,
constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its committees,
procedures of nomination of directors for election, shareholders’ rights and
communication policy, corporate governance practices, announcements,
circulars and reports released to the Stock Exchange and other information
are posted. Information on the Company’s website will be updated from time
to time.

The Company’s Annual General Meeting is one of the important platforms
to communication with its shareholders. 2014 Annual General Meeting
of the Company will be held at 16th Floor, Tower I, Grand Central Plaza,
138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
on 7 August 2014. The full text of the resolutions and explanatory notes
in respect of the meeting are contained in the Notice of Annual General
Meeting. All shareholders are invited to attend the Annual General Meeting
and participate in communicating with the Company.

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FUJIKON INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujikon Industrial
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 45 to 110, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2014,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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Statements of Financial Position

A $5 4K L 3R

As at 31 March 2014
#HE201443A318

Group Company
KEME KATF
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
{iFes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRB 6 239,129 208,813 - -
Investment properties REME 7 3,120 2,860 = =
Land use rights T3 h A 8 9,864 9,988 = =
Non-current deposits and other EREIR S R EA
assets BE 5,202 7,504 - =
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ENKEE 9 1,067 4,604 - =
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AT ZRE 10 - = 142,778 142,193
Deferred income tax assets BEMBHEE 18 4,189 238 - =
Total non-current assets FEMBEERE 262,571 234,007 142,778 142,193
Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE 1 164,579 188,262 - -
Trade receivables e &R 12 222,835 282,902 - =
Other receivables Hh fEU R IR 12 22,280 29,627 223 2,625
Derivative financial instruments THESBMT A 13 - 121 - =
Other financial assets at fair value XA F(Ezt ABz
through profit or loss MR & E 14 8,984 4,633 - =
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ENKEE 9 1,266 - - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries =N E R 10 - = 214,773 223,432
Current income tax recoverable A e BT S AR 1,468 4 = 4
Pledged bank deposits BHEMIRITER 15 - 11,499 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEY 15 468,852 441,933 341 782
et GlEENE .. 955,01 DR - HEE
Current liabilities MEEE
Trade payables ERE K 16 163,028 168,227 - -
Accruals and other payables FEsTE R N H b e
k1A 16 113,032 107,797 6,707 12,037
Derivative financial instruments PTESmTHE 13 6,834 - = -
Current income tax liabilities EHFEHas 18,205 27,730 42 =
Bank borrowings RITIEE 17 - 42,138 - =
__Total current liabilities ~ wBAMEE 301,099 345892 6749 12,037
__Netcurrentassets ___ ABEEFE 589,165 613,126 . 208,588 214,806
_Total assets less current liabilities = @&AEAABHEE L . 847133 51366 356,999
Non-current liabilities FERBEAE
Deferred income TEE WA - 494 - -
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFMEHEE 18 1,967 759 - -
__Total non-current liabilities  Jra#afeE 1967 1253 - -
Net assets BESE 849,769 845,880 351,366 356,999
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Statements of Financial Position

Bt 5 AR AL 3R

As at 31 March 2014
H=2014%63A318

Group Company
rEE NN
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
B et HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Equity s
Capital and reserves attributable BEARNFIRERBA
to the Company's equity holders ZIRAR
Share capital [N 19 41,986 41,244 41,986 41,244
Other reserves Hith 21 244,820 228,761 262,146 252,675
Retained earnings R & A
— Proposed dividends —EzRE 28 37,787 49,880 37,787 49,880
— Others —Hfh 479,037 480,128 9,447 13,200
803,630 800,013 351,366 356,999
Non-controlling interests FEPEHIME R 46,139 45,867 - -
Total equity B A st 849,769 845,880 351,366 356,999
YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON
Chairman Joint Deputy Chairman
FE e

The notes on pages 50 to 110 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
SE50E 1108 2 MEE Tt 4R & M sk 2 &6 1p o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEZEWRR

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE2014F3A3MBLEFE

Note 2014 2013
B 5t HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue LN 22 1,525,276 1,605,551
Cost of sales SHE A AN (1,265,028) (1,280,150)
Gross profit EF 260,248 325,401
Other gains — net Eofth e —FRE 23 4,466 14,890
Distribution and selling expenses DHEMEE S T (20,684) (24,956)
General and administrative expenses —MRITHEZ H (166,518) (176,269)
Operating profit B A 24 77,512 139,066
Finance income =T ON 25 5,197 6,363
Finance costs A& A 25 (1,414) (2,621)
Profit before income tax B P45 25 Al A 81,295 142,808
Income tax expenses FriSfisz 26 (15,352) (23,926)
__Profitfor theyear  #Fead B 118882
Other comprehensive income: Hoth 2 E U Es
Items that may be subsequently BT EER Y EERER
reclassified to income statement: ZIEE :
Currency translation differences MEH ZRE 7,554 2,774
Fair value (losses)/gains on AEHERKEEZ AFE
available-for-sale financial assets (B518), Wi (399) 280
Other comprehensive income for the FAHMEEYE - 20K
o yeannetoftax BB 7055 3054
Total comprehensive income FRE2HE W =L
for the year 73,098 121,936
Profit attributable to: i N BRI
Equity holders of the Company RRAIAERF B A 62,318 114,312
Non-controlling interests FEPE SR A 3,625 4,570
65,943 118,882
Total comprehensive income FHEHWHBERS
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company ARNFRERE A 68,906 117,186
Non-controlling interests FE4E il M A 4,192 4,750
73,098 121,936
Dividends ) 28 62,944 78,590
Earnings per share for profit FHRHEBARAREREA
attributable to the equity holders of 2 7 B B R 2 A
the Company during the year
- Basic — &K 29 HK14.9 cents HK27.9 cents
— Diluted — 58 29 HK14.4 cents HK26.9 cents

The notes on pages 50 to 110 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEHERBIR

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE2014F3A3MBLFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

HENRREREREA

Non-
Share Other Retained  controlling
capital reserves earnings interests Total
Hit RE FEEE I
Note &N fE il Ex gt
P 2 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2012 R2012%4H1H 41,014 217,517 505,927 46,017 810,475
Profit for the year F A& - - 114,312 4,570 118,882
Other comprehensive income: Hin2mEE -
— Currency translation differences —EXER 21 - 2,594 - 180 2,774
— Fair value gains on — A HE SR
available-for-sale BELZ DT
financial assets Bz 21 - 280 - - 280
Total comprehensive income for the year 2201343 H31H
ended 31 March 2013 LEEE2ERE
HBEE - 2,874 114,312 4,750 121,936
Employee share option scheme: & B IEET S
- Value of employee services —-EERBZEE 2 - 6,058 - - 6,058
— Proceed from shares issued upon —1T{EREREM
exercise of share options BIlkin 2
PSR 21 230 2,304 - - 2,534
Release of investment reserves upon & At H S 7%
disposal of available-for-sale financial ~&ER TR 2
assets RE 21 - 8 - - 8
Dividends paid BRARE = = (90,231) (4,900) (95,131)
At 31 March 2013 R2013F3A31H 41,244 228,761 530,008 45,867 845,880
Profit for the year E N Al - - 62,318 3,625 65,943
Other comprehensive income: Hi 2 mEz -
— Currency translation differences —EHERE 21 - 6,987 - 567 7,554
— Fair value losses on available-for- — A S BT
sale financial assets BEZRAF
BEEE 21 - (399) - - (399)
Total comprehensive income for the year 220143 A31H
ended 31 March 2014 FFE2ERE
FEbE] - 6,588 62,318 4,192 73,098
Employee share option scheme: BB B RERTE
~ Value of employee services —-EERBZEE 2 - 1,439 - = 1,439
— Proceed from shares issued upon —1T{EREREM
exercise of share options BIlkin 2
e 21 742 8,032 - - 8,774
Dividends paid BEARE - - (75,502) (3,920) (79,422)
At 31 March 2014 R201453H31H 41,986 244,820 516,824 46,139 849,769

The notes on pages 50 to 110 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

V. s2x =2
& a INERER
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE2014F3A3MBLEFE

Note 2014 2013
B 5t HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash flows from operating activities RE&EHHEERE
Cash generated from operations KEEBMS RS 31(a) 214,665 121,197
Interest paid [=EEESS (1,414) (2,621)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBREN (22,853) (10,390)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BIREFBNEN = 537
China corporate income tax paid BB ZEMEH (6,515) (5,725)
Net cash generated from KRS 2R EF8
operating activities 183,883 102,998
Cash flows from investing activities REETHESRE
Interest received BLUFE 4,614 6,363
Purchase of property, plant and BAME - BB R&E
equipment (57,786) (36,278)
Purchase of other financial assets BARA T EGT ABRN
at fair value through profit or Hthb 5 & &=
loss (11,502) (10,358)
Purchase of available-for-sale BATHLEMBEE
financial assets (1,258) (3,129)
Proceeds from disposal of HETHEENKEE
available-for-sale financial FriS IR
assets = 6,046
Proceeds from disposal of property, &Y - BFE K& FH 1S HIAE
plant and equipment 186 542
Proceeds from disposal of other HERA T ET AERD
financial assets at fair value H At B 765 & B PAS 30E
through profit or loss 7,009 58,749
Decrease/(increase) in deposits for ME  BEIREZES
property, plant and equipment WA (48 2,403 (7,504)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEBIRITFERORD ()
bank deposits 11,499 (11,499)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEEE(FTA), /B2 ReFE
investing activities (44,835) 2,932
Cash flows from financing METHESRE
activities
Issue of shares upon exercise of EIAT {0 BB AR HE T BT AR A7
share options 31(b) 8,774 2,534
Dividends paid to a non-controlling BB AL R 2 ik 8
shareholder of a subsidiary (3,920) (4,900)
Dividends paid ENBRE (75,502) (90,231)
Proceeds from new bank FIERITIER
borrowings 31(b) 50,441 46,900
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRITEE 31(b) (93,228) (45,510)
Net cash used in financing activities B & EEATA 2 IR €5 (113,435) (91,207)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRkESEEYWIEINFE
equivalents 25,613 14,723
Exchange differences M H ZRE 1,306 1,819
Cash and cash equivalents at FNHReRBFEFEY
beginning of the year 441,933 425,391
Cash and cash equivalents at end FHRBEESRBESEEY
of the year 468,852 441,933

The notes on pages 50 to 110 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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50

General information

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the design,
manufacture, marketing and trading of electro-acoustic products,
accessories and other electronic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 26 June 2014.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting new standards, amendments

to standards and interpretation

The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation are mandatory for the Group’s financial year

beginning on 1 April 2013:

HKFRSs (Amendment)

BB BIRE LR (BFTA)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
BAMBIREERE 15 (EFTAR)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

BAMBRELANETHR(EFTA)

HKFRS 10

BAEMBREEANE105

HKFRS 11

BAMBHREEAE15E

HKFRS 12

BAMBREEAEI125%

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 (Amendment)

BBV R EERIF105E - BB KRS 2R
FNRKERBE B IEHRELERFE125(EFTA)

HKFRS 13

BB RS ERIFE1358

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

BB R ERE15 (BETA)

HKAS 19 (2011)

BB ERZE195%(2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

BB ERE275%(2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

BB R 285%(2011)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 20

A1 %5 ¥ 2= Pif s

2 FEEHBE#ME®)
2.1 RBEEEE)

(@) WAHTER  BRIZBITRRE

EI
e

THF TR - ER ZEF] RERE
RN E2013F4 A1 8 £ 2 BB
JE 58 I ER A

Improvement to HKFRSs 2011

BBV HMEERI2011F 2 Bt

Government loans

BT E R

Financial Instruments: Disclosures — offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

TRILA: WE-VUBEELRVBREZEE

Consolidated financial statements

iR MRk

Joint Arrangements

Rz B

Disclosure of interests in other entities

BRERNEMERE Z#Ea

Consolidated financial statements, joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other entities: transition guidance

RAEMBEmE HATHER
REREMER Z#5 - BEES

Fair value measurement

NFERE

Presentation of financial statements

iR eIk

Employee benefits

EERRA

Separate financial statements

VAR B

Investment in associates and joint ventures

REEERAREERRZIRE

Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine

He(BRYERELENZBRZES) —REE205% FR R HE5 A EE PR B Z RIBRACAR

The adoption of these new standards, amendments to FRaN Bt eT 2R - BRI Z BRI RERBRH RS

standards and interpretation did not result in a significant EXEERPBHRANBERNLE o
impact on the results and financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2 FEEFBRBME (&)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
(b) New standards, amendments to standards and (b) BEMEERERZHTED - £
interpretation that have been issued but are Az 18T R 28

not effective

THIFTETER - ERI 2 B8] M2 fE
RALE013F4818 A 2 B K
FEEEMEENAERBLERE

The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation have been issued, but are not effective for the
Group's financial year beginning on 1 April 2013 and have not

52

been early adopted.

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendments)
BBNBMEEAETIHRREBT BHREERFE IR
CCHES)

HKFRS 9
BB E LR B IR

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment)
EBMIEREELFE105% - FEMIERE ERF1258
NEBESTERFE2757(2011) (BT A)

HKFRS 14
BB E LR R 1457

HKAS 19 (2011) Amendment
BB ST ERFE19552011)(BETA)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
BB EREI25 (BFTA)
HKAS 36 (Amendment)
BB LR E365 (BFTA)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

BB G ERE395% (EFTA)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21
A (BRMBRELANREZEE) -2BE1%R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation that have been issued but are
not effective (Continued)

U Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014
H2014F1 B1HS 2 & Fth 2 TIBRF E AR

2 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2014
F2014F7 A1 B 2 R FB 2 BB AR

3 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2015
B2015F1 A1 B 8 2 R FB 2 M BER AR

& Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2016
201651 B1 Bl 2 & Fth 2 WTIBRF E AR

> No mandatory effective date yet determined

1) 7 788 7 5 il A= 2% H HA

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above new
standards, amendments to standards and interpretation will
not result in a significant impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the group’s
accounting policies.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’'s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

A1 %5 ¥ 2= Pif s
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors who collectively make
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
Transactions and balances

(b)
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in amortised costs are recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

(c)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income presented are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average rate is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment, other than construction-in-progress, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease

Shorter of remaining lease term
of 30-50 years or useful life

2.5% to 8'/3%
10% to 30%
20% to 30%

30%

Buildings

Machinery and moulds
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within “other
gains — net”, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents consideration
paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants and
buildings are situated for a period of 50 years. Amortisation of land
use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents office buildings under
construction and machinery and equipment pending installation. It
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes the
original cost of land, construction expenditures incurred, machinery
and equipment and related installation costs, and other costs
attributable to the construction of the buildings and installation of
machinery and equipment. No depreciation is provided in respect
of construction-in-progress until the construction work is completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are brought
into use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in
the consolidated group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it was a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Annual Report 2013/2014

2

FEETHERE )
2.8 REYWHE

FERMBES WS R ENEEIMERE
AYFEHEBETERRMER 2YE
BERASREME

REMEZBRUAKEHERE 2RI
MEMEREZET -

NEERERB 2 THMAEREMEZ
HBREER HREAREMENREBIA
fR- BRACKEHERUBMEEESAA
BR o

REMERNAERA(BERBEZSHK
R)FHE -

HERERL  REMERAFEAR -
REETNERTISERRER  RUE
BREEEEZ MY « B SAMR 2 E[
ZRELFR - ERERFUHEFEH K
SEERARTNERT S A HRERST
RRERERHNFEMMEETTE - ZEM
BEEFHIFGEEMETIE -

REMFEZ AFERB(EhE4E)HRE
EzHeBARARETRE BREE
BB HEWA -

HEFAXRAAAIEREZIAR BMNR
REEMeERANEE - MazA B KRR
RERSERTER - T ARt AZBREE 2RE
B MAEMEERRERAREESZ
FRBREZFA2HKRERAIIERX

ATFEZ BBEHAGE S EREED -

WREMEEBEAR  ZNEHEHIER
RYE  BERERE AEMRSHREHZ
DN EERBKATIER -

2 - WP R skt B IR Mg Sk & Ak
REEME  ENEREEAZEEERR
FEZEMZE  SREFEGELF
16N EEAERBANE  BERREE
iR o A - WA FEEERDBER
BEEE  MZARBERREEE2ERER
hHER ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested at
least annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.10Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are classified as trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the statements of
financial position (Notes 2.13 and 2.14).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on the date of trade — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category, are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “other
gains — net” in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within “other gains — net”. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the Group's
right to receive payment is established.

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in Note 2.13.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. As at 31
March 2014, the Group did not designate any derivatives as hedging
instruments. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “other
gains — net”.

2.12Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.13Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

2.15Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

64

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or trustee-
administered funds. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

e  excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. At the
end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

(c) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.20Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the related risks and
rewards of ownership of the products delivered have passed to
the customers.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

(c) Management fees and handling income

Management fees and handling income are recognised when
the relevant services are rendered.

(d) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the relevant leases.

2.22 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

2.23Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group performs a liability
adequacy test at each statement of financial position date by
comparing its net liability regarding the financial guarantee with
the amount that would be required if the financial guarantee were
to result in a present legal or constructive obligation. If the liability
is less than its present legal or constructive obligation amount, the
entire difference is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. During the year, no provision has been made
in the financial statements for the financial guarantees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, as appropriate.

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are deferred and credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash
flow and fair value interest-rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

(0

(i)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China with transactions mainly settled in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and
US dollars (“USD"). The Group is mainly exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate.

The Group entered into foreign currency forward
contracts to manage such exposure. The net fair value
of foreign exchange forward contracts entered into by
the Group for managing the risk relating to monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at 31 March
2014 was a liability of HK$6,834,000 (2013: an asset
of HK$121,000) and has been recognised as derivative
financial instruments.

At 31 March 2014, if HKD/USD had weakened/
strengthened by 2% (2013: 2%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,348,000 (2013:
HK$1,797,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on net impact on translation of
RMB-denominated net monetary assets of subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and HKD/USD-denominated net monetary
assets of subsidiaries in Mainland China.

Price risk

The Group’s investment bonds, listed securities and
investment funds are susceptible to market price risk
arising from uncertainties about future prices of those
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. Management considered that
the exposure of investment bonds, listed securities and
investment funds to price risk is not significant.
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3.1 BiEBEZEE)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) TIBREMR(E)
(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) RERK QX FEFRER
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets REm TIRITEHIN - AEEN

except for certain bank deposits, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. The Group will review whether bank loans
bearing fixed or floating rates should be drawn from time
to time with reference to the trend of changes in interest
rates.

The Group’s bank borrowings were primarily at fixed
rates which expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk. The Group generally does not use financial
derivatives to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
resulted from the changes in interest rates on interest-
bearing assets and bank borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, cash
and bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

At 31 March 2014, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities of its subsidiaries. Credit risk
relating to those guarantees amounted to approximately
HK$155,700,000 (2013: HK$155,700,000), which represented
the notional amounts of such guarantees.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has put in
place policies to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers and takes
appropriate follow-up actions to recover overdue debts.

The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and
the directors are of the opinion that adequate provision
for uncollectible trade receivables has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

(b)
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, substantially all cash and bank
deposits are placed with major financial institutions located
in Hong Kong and Mainland China; all financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets are also placed with those financial institutions which
management believes are of high credit quality. Management
does not expect any losses arising from non-performance by
these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and
commitments of the Group. The Group also maintains a
healthy level of liquid assets and committed banking facilities
to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet
any unexpected and material cash requirements in the
ordinary course of business. At 31 March 2014, the Group has
unutilised committed banking facilities of HK$273,808,000
(2013: HK$231,210,000).

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities,
the remaining periods of which at the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity date are within 12 months.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BMREBEREE)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEBEEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () REMEREE)
Group rEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade and other payables JE ST TR e EL At e A 5K I8 225,275 238,236
Bank borrowings RITEE = 42,138
Interest payables JE A L2 - 1,120
225,275 281,494
Company PN
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Other payables H fth JE A 3R 6,643 11,686
Capital risk management 32 BEXAEBERE

3.2

3.3

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total equity, including
share capital, other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group was at the net cash
position.

Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the
statement of financial position at fair value are required to disclose
the fair value measurements by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 —  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

3.3
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 BREBEREE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEHE)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets that are TREINRNEER2014F3A31HZR AT
measured at fair value at 31 March 2014. B E2MEEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B8R F2UR $38% ‘et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through X AFEFABREZ
profit or loss BT EE
— Listed securities and investment —EWEHEREE 8,984 = = 8,984
funds &
Available-for-sale financial assets At ENKEE
— Corporate bonds —EEH 2,333 = = 2,333
Total st 11,317 - - 11,317
Liabilities =F
Derivative financial instruments MESRMT A - 6,834 - 6,834
The following table presents the Group's financial assets that are TRENNANEBMR2013F3AMBEEAF
measured at fair value at 31 March 2013. BEtEZMIEEE °
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1R E2R F38K #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value through %A (Bt ABzE 2
profit or loss B EE
— Listed securities and investment - EmEHEK
funds REES 4,633 - - 4,633
Derivative financial instruments ST A - 121 = 121
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENBEE
— Corporate bonds —hERF 4,604 - - 4,604
Total st 9,237 121 - 9,358
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-
sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the statement of
financial position date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety
of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash
flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange market rates at the end of the
reporting period.

There was no transfer of financial assets between level 1 and level
2 during the year.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

/4

(a)

(b)

(c)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management expects it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available to utilise against the
temporary differences or tax losses. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets in the period in which
such estimates have been changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’'s management determines the estimated useful lives, and
related depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

Estimated provision for impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. Provisions are
made where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of receivables and impairment is recognised in
the year in which such estimate has been changed.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an assessment
of the realisability of inventories. Provisions are recognised where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of inventories may not be realised. The identification of provision
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and provision for inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated provision for warranty

The Group records warranty liabilities based on past experience
of the level of repairs or returns. The assessment of the provision
amount involves management’s judgments and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying amount of the
product warranty and the provision amount charged/reversed in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment and
land use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in asset impairment review
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset is less than the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) whether
appropriate key assumptions are applied in preparing cash flow
projections including using an appropriate discount rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in the impairment
assessment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's financial position and results of operations. If there
is a significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to charge
an impairment loss to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(g) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group relies on bank valuations to determine the fair value of
financial instruments which in turn are determined using various
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models
and option pricing model, which require the input of subjective
assumptions including forward foreign exchange rates, risk free
rates and market volatility. Judgment is required in the calculation
of such valuations. Changes in the underlying assumptions could
impact profit and loss or equity.

(h) Employee benefits — share-based payments

The valuation of the fair value of the share options granted requires
judgement in determining the expected volatility of the share price,
the dividends expected on the shares, the risk-free interest rate
during the life of the options and the number of share options
that are expected to vest. Where the outcome of the number of
options that are vested is different, such difference will impact the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the subsequent
remaining vesting period of the relevant share options.

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the executive directors. CODM reviews the Group's internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

CODM assesses the performance of the business from a product
perspective, i.e. by headsets and headphones, and accessories and
components.

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
segment results before corporate expenses, other gains and losses,
finance income and costs.

Revenue between segments is carried out in accordance with the terms
mutually agreed by the respective parties. The revenue from external
parties is derived from numerous external customers and is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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5 Segment information (continued)

Headsets and

5

A1 %5 ¥ 2= Pif s

B EER (A

Accessories and

headphones components Elimination Total
ARERRTEER BHREH sy kel
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000  HKS$'000 HKS$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HKS$'000  HKS'000

Segment revenue DEWA

~ External revenue e FVON 1,158,333 1,248,372 366,943 357,179 - - 1,525,276 1,605,551

- Inter-segment revenue —AEEKA - - 85893 99,616 (85893) (99,616) - -
Total HekS] 1,158,333 1248372 452,836 456,795 (85,893) (99,616) 1,525,276 1,605,551
Segment results AEEE 75495 114780 3,560 17,235 - - 79,055 132,015
Corporate expenses PETH (6,009  (7,839)
Other gains - net Hitls— 58 4,466 14,890
Finance income REKA 5,197 6,363
Finance costs BEKA (1,414)  (2.621)
Profit before income tax BRPATSH AT R 81,295 142,808
Depreciation of property, plant nE BERZEINE

and equipment 22,375 19319 11,109 9,429 = - 33,484 28,748
Amortisation of land use rights ~ -3t{f i 7 B 4 172 166 128 125 = - 300 291
Provision for impairment of ERERE

inventory obsolescence 17,223 2,741 3,718 9 = - 20,941 2,840
(Reversal of provision)/provision ~ JEUTESFURIE (E1%) /Bl

for impairment of trade

receivables (1,184) 2,21 (1,192) 1,829 = - (2,376) 4,056
Additions to non-current assets FrRBEEEM(RERIA

(other than financial instruments ~ RIRIEFTEF A ESN)

and deferred income tax assets) 34976 31,711 23,416 16,506 = - 58392 48217

For the year ended 31 March 2014, revenues of approximately
HK$381,793,000 (2013: HK$230,039,000) in headsets and headphones
segment were derived from two (2013: one) customers, amounted to
approximately HK$209,605,000 and HK$172,188,000 respectively, which
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's total revenue.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. Revenue from external
customers attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 31 March 2014 is
approximately HK$1,308,329,000 (2013: HK$1,392,743,000), and the total
revenue from external customers from Mainland China is approximately
HK$216,947,000 (2013: HK$212,808,000).

At 31 March 2014, the total non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong
is approximately HK$37,211,000 (2013: HK$34,955,000), and the
total non-current assets located in Mainland China is approximately
HK$220,104,000 (2013: HK$194,210,000).

HE014F3A3MBULFE  BKERESE
H 1% 5> 3649381,793,000/5 7T (2013 : 230,039,000
BIL) ZWA  TIREME(2013: —Z)BF
5 Bl 49 £5209,605,0007% 7T 5. 172,188,000/ 7T °
ZEEAEEBRAI0%MA E

RKATAEBBEM - & =201453A31
HEFERBEABZHIZTEFRALN A
1,308,329,0005% 7. (2013 : 1,392,743,000/& %)
MAREFEAH 2 HIINEFPRABEL S
216,947,0007% 7£(2013 : 212,808,000/ 7T) °

R2014F38318 - e @M T A RBELENST
HREEN MREBZERDEELEBEN S
37,211,0007% 7 (2013 : 34,955,000/8 7T ) * 1M fi
R B A 2 SE7 B) & = 42 (E 4 45220,104,000
#7(2013 = 194,210,000/ 7T) ©

2013/2014 3 ETSESXERERAT
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Property, plant and equipment

6 WX HBEERKRE

Group
FEH

Leasehold Furniture

land and Construction-  Machinery and Motor

buildings in-progress and moulds equipment vehicles Total

HELTi B RHRR

kEF "‘EIR KR B 20 RE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 April 2012 R2012%4A10
Cost B 7K 218,436 5,073 301,438 126,741 21,467 673,155
Accumulated depreciation ESpi (69,913) - (276,301)  (113,275) (17,475)  (476,964)
Net book amount REFE 148,523 5,073 25,137 13,466 3,992 196,191
Year ended 31 March 2013 BZ2013F3831ALFE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 148,523 5,073 25,137 13,466 3,992 196,191
Additions R 5,803 6,412 16,397 9,942 2,159 40,713
Disposals HE - - (253) (70) (120 (443)
Transfer b 577 (577) - - - -
Depreciation charge FERX (7,200) - (12,729) (6,352) (2,467) (28,748)
Exchange differences R =S 788 37 178 86 11 1,100
Closing net book amount FRERFE 148,491 10,945 28,730 17,072 3,575 208,813
At 31 March 2013 M2013F3A31H
Cost B 7K 225,163 10,945 203,933 118,185 20,110 578,336
Accumulated depreciation 25t E (76,672) - (175203)  (101,113) (16,535  (369,523)
Net book amount FEFE 148,491 10,945 28,730 17,072 3,575 208,813
Year ended 31 March 2014 BZ2014F3831HILEE
Opening net book amount FOEEFE 148,491 10,945 28,730 17,072 3,575 208,813
Additions BN 1,016 4,650 37,750 11,417 5,962 60,795
Disposals HE - - (10) (39) (61) (110)
Transfer R 1,624 (6,389) - 4,765 - -
Depreciation charge WERS (7,463) - (15,263) (8,441) (2,317) (33,484)
Exchange differences [ 2,265 101 465 251 33 3,115
Closing net book amount FRERFE 145,933 9,307 51,672 25,025 7,192 239,129
At 31 March 2014 R201453A318
Cost 5% 231,284 9,307 242,957 135,024 24,419 642,991
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (85,351) - (191,285)  (109,999) (17,227)  (403,862)
Net book amount REEE 145,933 9,307 51,672 25,025 7,192 239,129

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013/2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$23,435,000 (2013: HK$19,925,000) has been
included in cost of sales and HK$10,049,000 (2013: HK$8,823,000) in
general and administrative expenses.

At 31 March 2014, the net book value of property, plant and equipment
being pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$37,391,000 (2013: HK$37,950,000).

At 31 March 2014, the Group's interests in leasehold land at net book
value of HK$9,542,000 (2013: HK$9,829,000) is located in Hong Kong and
held on leases between 10 to 50 years.

A1 %5 ¥ 2= Pif s

ME - - BMERRE®)

#r & F 323,435,000/ 70 (2013 : 19,925,000/
TC) B AR 88 5 A 2K 12.10,049,00058 7T (2013
8,823,0008 L) E AR — M RITH T H °

720143 A318 - BRI F{E £937,391,0007%5 7T
(2013 : 37,950,000 ) 2 W% - WE K& B
BEFEM (EARNEERSRITME ZIKE

]
A °

R2014%F3 8318 - ZEBEREE L2 KM
SFERE 9,542,000 7T (2013 : 9,829,000/ 7T)
RANBEBLAO0ES0FEHLEAR o

Investment properties REY*

Group

rEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year F4) 2,860 1,900
Fair value gains (Note 23) NFEWRE (FEE23) 260 960
End of the year FR 3,120 2,860

For the year ended 31 March 2014, outgoings in respect of investment
properties amounted to HK$12,000 (2013: HK$12,000).

The investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2014 by LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer.
Valuations were based on current prices in an active market.

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group's interests in investment
properties are wholly located in Hong Kong and held on leases between
10 to 50 years.

Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment properties at
least annually. In the current year, the valuations are performed by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuers. At the end of each reporting period, the directors update their
assessment of the fair value of each property, taking into account the
most recent independent valuations. The directors determine a property’s
value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.

HE14F3ANBULFE  BEMEZ T
7312,00078 7T (2013 : 12,000/ 7T) °

R20145F3A31H  WEMXHBIYIEELE
EAGERMFIETRERMAR A R#ETER 4
ENRBEAERTIS ZBITERETT -

20144 201343 A318 » AEBRIKREW
¥R HRMUNES KIA10ES0FEH O
ﬁ °

fE B

AEBEEIRNEFREREVEZBILGE -
RAEE - B EXASERMGEMAERTR
EMBRABETMHE REREHARER
o EFeKEEROBYAHEENSYE
ZRFEZFE EERNAEAFEAERE
NETEYEERE -

2018/2014 £ BT SEXEZERER2T 79
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Investment properties (Continued)

Valuation basis (Continued)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar investment properties. Where such information is not available the
directors consider information from a variety of sources including:

(i)  Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted
to reflect those differences;

(ii) Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows; or

(iii) Capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated
net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an

analysis of market evidence.

The valuation gain is included in “Other gains — net” in the consolidated
income statement (Note 23).

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair
value by valuation method:

Fair value hierarchy

BEM= A
EEE R ()

RNHEZRERA/RERMIGHORENE

ZHE - BEEREMSRTENE 8

ZRERER - B

(i) ABRMSTRAMEENEZREIBINE
REBETNERMS 2B FHEARKRZE
ER

(i) REAEGFARBERZGHEFRES
K

(i) BEVEZBATHBRAFEERNLGHE

WA » BEARFIR YIRS ERDT
HERZREE kSR ks — 558 1508k
(M35E23) ©

TREJABEERATFEARZKRENEZ
AR

DNFEER

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2014 using

R201453A31BFTAZ A FETE

Quoted prices in

active markets Significant Significant
for identical other observable unobservable
assets (Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
HEEERNER HitEEaHE EETAHE
& ZRE(FE1R) WAE(E24) BWAE(E3R)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value measurements & & MEATFEE
— Investment properties —REMF = 3,120 =

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Level 2 fair values of investment properties have been derived using the
direct comparison approach, which is based on comparing the property
to be valued directly with other comparable properties in close proximity,
which have recently transacted.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013/2014

AEBZHRRANEMHEHLE ARBERKE S
HEBE  THRALXFEBRZIBANES -

RER - BMEFI1R  FREREIPZEHE
% o

FIGREMEZ A TVFEERERLBINE
E A EMREIRNR 5 2 AR Emr]
HEYFEETERLR °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 %5 4R R Bt 5E

Land use rights + it {55 F

Group

rEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year E4) 9,988 10,217

Amortisation of prepaid BiHTRN S EATIA

operating lease payment (300) (291)
Exchange differences EHE 176 62
End of the year FrR 9,864 9,988

At 31 March 2014, the net book value of land use rights pledged as
security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$4,485,000 (2013: HK$4,525,000).

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease

R201453 A31H » BR M ¥ 8 474,485,0007%8 7T
(2013 : 4,525,000 7T ) © L Hb{F A #EE T K
1 EAAREBIERITHE 2 KIFM -

REERN T E A2 S RBNEERORK

payments and their net book value are analysed as follows: BREKREFESTAT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mainland China — held on leases H B A — A0 ZES0F LA
between 10 to 50 years 9,864 9,988

20132014 5% ErSEXEZRERAF  §1
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9 Available-for-sale financial assets 9 AHHEMKEE
Group
AEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year E4) 4,604 7,249
Additions B 1,258 3,129
Disposals k== (3,130) (6,062)
Fair value (losses)/gains transferred EEEEMmEEkE
to other comprehensive RNTE(EE) W
income (Note 21) (Hg5E21) (399) 280
Release of reserves upon disposal F A E R PTRRRR 2 [ (i EE21)
during the year (Note 21) - 8
End of the year FR 2,333 4,604
Less: current portion (Note) B mBER D (MIEE) (1,266) =
1,067 4,604
Note: Current portion represented available-for-sales financial assets which are Mzt : RBBHERHRN2EAATRBEHRIHZ
expected to mature at various dates within 12 months. AHHEMBEE -
At 31 March 2014, the Group's available-for-sale financial assets R201453A318  AEBZAHHERBE
represented investment bonds. The fair value of the investment bonds ERKREES - REREEFZAFEDRE
was based on their current bid price in an active market provided by RHHTIREERENERM S 2EAEBME -

counterparties.

82  Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013/2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 ¥5 ¥k == Pif 5E

Investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries 10 RMIBATZRE R EWRIE

(a)

(b)

Investments in subsidiaries (a) RMIBRABZRE
Company
PN
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost FE_E TR KRBT R 139,000 139,000
Contribution relating to B[R 1 R B4R B8 2 3K
share-based payments 3,778 3,193
142,778 142,193
The underlying value of the investments in subsidiaries is, in the ARREERE HERWB AR ZHEEE
opinion of the Company’s directors, not less than the carrying value TAR20145F3 A31B 2 AREE ©

at 31 March 2014.

Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) FEWHEBRBIRIE

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and FEUHI B A B I8 Ty E R - B RAR
repayable on demand. The balance is denominated in Hong Kong EREE - BAFKBABTTIIE
dollars.

2013/2014 £  ELSEEZRERLT  §3
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10 Investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries

(Continued)

(c) Principal subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March

() FEWBERF

10 ABRARIZREREWRE (&)

TRAR2014F3A31A 2 T EMNBERR:

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013/2014

B R (B R
(ili) — 600,00078 7T

2014:
Place of
incorporation/
principal place Particulars of
Name of operation Principal activities issued share capital Interest held (ii)
el BR1T
% TELE Y TEER RAZEE s REE (if)
Charter Media Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and trading HK$3 100%
FEERAR BB of electro-acoustic products and 3BT
accessories
REERKEESBERREH
Charter Media (Dongguan) Mainland China Manufacture of electro-acoustic HK$190,000,000 100%
Company Limited (i) FEIA products and accessories 190,000,000 7T
FE(RE)EFARAHEI) SUEBBEm T
Dongguan Full Rich Precision Metal Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$11,000,000 100%
Products Company Limited (i) FE A precision metal parts 11,000,00075 7T
RrEEREAEnERAF() HERBERT SR
Fujikon Electrical Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$3 100%
EIREXARAA BB REER 3BT
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited (ii) British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$3,000 100%
EBRAHS REZK 3,000 7T
Fujikon Industrial Hong Kong Design, manufacture, Class A -
Company Limited £V marketing and trading of (non-voting)(iii) -
ETREXARRAA electro-acoustic products HK$2,400,000
and accessories AR {7
Ret o BUE - HER (RS (i) —
BEEEREMMEH 2,400,007 7C
Class B 100%
(voting)(iii) -
HK$600,000
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10 Investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries 10 RMIBATZKREREWRIE &)

(Continued)
(c) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) (00 EEMBLATE)
Place of
incorporation/
principal place Particulars of
Name of operation Principal activities issued share capital Interest held (ii)
Effib s 2R
£ TEREWHY TEEH RAF 5 s RS (if)
Fujikon International Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and trading of HK$3 100%
ETaBRAERRAA BB transformers and power adaptors 3BT
REZBRREBEEE
RENEER
Fujikon Packing Material Company Limited (vi)  Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$10,000 51%
EToREDHARDF W) BB manufacture and trading 10,0007 7T
of packaging materials
REZBRARRER BEEBEDH
Fujikon Precision Metal Products Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$10,000 100%
EInREILERERAR BE manufacture and trading 10,0007 7T
of precision metal parts
REZBRARMERERRT
Bil ol s
Full-Sound (Dongguan) Electrical Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$5,000,000 100%
Products Limited (i) FEAH electro-acoustic products 5,000,000/ 7T
2B (RR)EREMHERA and accessories
HNERBEEERERREM
Keen Motion Limited Hong Kong Provision of management services HK$2 100%
BRARRA e REEERSG VBT
Landbo Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$100 100%
VRERAT BB MERR 1007%7T
Maxchief Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$150 100%
EEGCEBRAR BB trading of electro-acoustic 1508 7T

products and accessories

REZRLBEEEBER R

2013/2014 53 BSroBEERERAR 85



Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 %5 ¥ 2% Pif s

10

86

Investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries

(Continued)

(c) Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
principal place

() £E=E

MEQTE)

Particulars of

10 ABRARIZREREWRE (&)

Name of operation Principal activities issued share capital Interest held (ii)
Efib s B#1T
% TERE TEER RAZEE s 2 (if)
Zhejiang Fousine Science & Mainland China Manufacture and trading of RMB60,000,000 70%
Technology Company FEIA PVC beads, wires and cables AR %60,000,0007T
Limited (iv) & (vi) HERBEERALGB -
AL E SR e A R 2 F (iv) R (vi) MR ER
Profits (Dongguan) Electric Mainland China Manufacture and trading HK$5,410,000 100%
Products Company Limited (i) FREIA of transformers and 5,410,000/ 7
RE(RZ)ERERERAE() power adaptors
HERBEEYRERE NEER
Score Merit Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2 100%
FIXAR AT BB REER VBT
Smart Success Management Limited British Virgin Investment holding Uss$100 100%
Islands REER 1003 7T
HERAAHE
Dong Guan Fortune Packing Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$20,000,000 51%
Products Company Limited (i) & (vi) ~ #BIAH packaging materials 20,000,000/ 7T
EEXRBEHRER AR )R ) SEREERENH
Guiyang Fullsound Electronic Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$5,000,000 100%
Products Limited (v) FE A electro-acoustic products 5,000,000/ 7T
EGERSREEARRRV) and accessories
SEREEESREmRE T
Notes: BT
(i)  Charter Media (Dongguan) Company Limited, Dongguan Full Rich (i) FR(EZ)ETARIT RxBER

Precision Metal Products Company Limited, Full-Sound (Dongguan)
Electrical Products Limited, Profits (Dongguan) Electric Products
Company Limited and Dong Guan Fortune Packing Products Company
Limited are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in Mainland
China to be operated for 25 years up to May 2019, 12 years up to
October 2016, 22 years up to April 2024, 17 years up to January 2017

and 25 years up to November 2024, respectively.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013/2014

TRSURERAT  ER(AN)ER
REERAT  BE(RE)ERLRE

BRARIRREERBELEMERAFN
BIRRE AT 2B EE R
ZEDED BIREE 201965 - 124
Z2016F10A8 - 226 22024F4 8 1752
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10 Investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries
(Continued)

(c) Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

The shares of Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited are held directly by the
Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Holders of Class A (non-voting) shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends unless the net profit of the company exceeds
HK$900,000,000,000, and are not entitled to any distribution upon
winding up unless a sum of HK$900,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the Company to holders of Class B (voting) shares.

A1 ¥5 ¥k == Pif 5E

10 AMBRARIZREREWRE (&)

() EEMBAT(HE)
iEE : (4)

(if)

(iii)

Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited 2 f% {7 fa 2%
NREERE - B R R 2’5
WEEREE -

AR(EIREZR)ROFE AL EZERE -
IEEERR S - RIERARMFER
900,000,000,00075 7T+ BB AR A RS
JAEMRS K - F3E900,000,000,0007 70,2
HEEHAQASD IR FBR(BIEER)R
MDIFAA °

(iv)  Zhejiang Fousine Science & Technology Company Limited is a sino- (iv) MIESESERNERARR—HEHRF
foreign equity joint venture established in Mainland China with no BAMKIZ FINEERD G ERE
fixed duration of operation. BEEEEER -

(v)  During the year, Guiyang Fullsound Electronic Products Limited, a v) RER BEHEEBEIREERIAN
wholly foreign owned enterprise, directly held by Maxchief Enterprises RERMKY - BEECERRAFTE
Limited was established in Mainland China and to be operated for 12 BERBZIBEZERELE  HEKEE12
years up to June 2025. 202568

(vi) The Group holds controlling interests in these subsidiaries. In the (i) AEBERZEMBRAFEIERESS -
opinion of the directors, the non-controlling interests are individually BEERR FEREREAEE 2UB
and in aggregate not material to the Group's financial statements. mEBERRAEBTZETIN Bt - 4
Therefore, no separate disclosure on these subsidiaries is presented. ZEMBRARICEIFEEILEES -

11 Inventories 1M 78

Group

AEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials JR# %L 71,397 96,751
Work-in-progress fE8 47,598 45,089
Finished goods SR i 45,584 46,422
164,579 188,262

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to approximately HK$1,244,087,000 (2013:
HK$1,277,310,000). For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
has made a net provision of inventory obsolescence of approximately
HK$20,941,000 (2013: HK$2,840,000).

BRABILERFAHERAZTEXRANA
1,244,087,0005% 7T (2013 : 1,277,310,000/8 7T ) °
HE214F3A318ILFE - AEE 2 REFH
% #9/520,941,00078 75 (2013 : 2,840,000 7T ) °

2013/2014 F3R

ELSEXERERAR
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88

Trade and other receivables

The Group grants credit periods to customers ranging from 7 to 120
days. At 31 March 2014, trade receivables of HK$175,919,000 (2013:
HK$191,021,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These related to a
number of independent customers for whom there was no relevant history
of default. Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are
not considered impaired except for customers which are in unexpected
difficult economic situations. At 31 March 2014 and 2013, other
receivables are not considered impaired and have no history of default.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables by past due date is as
follows:

12 BEWER R H it B IE

NEBBETFREETIEI208 2ZEH - 120144
3A318 @ fEWEFX175,919,000/% 7T (2013 :
191,021,000/ 7t ) 3 #% %60 HA 2O (B © 32 5 5K 1A
HETUWEEBERNERCENBEYIRERFE

Bo-BRUEBELTERNLCERNE 2RI -
A D R3E R 2 BN E R AR ARE - B
20144 }%2013F3A31H » EfbEW KB\ I T
Y=Y REW)E N s>

REMAGFEZRIRERZREDHTAT :

Group Company
rEH KA T
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Current & Hi 175,919 191,021 - -
1 to 30 days 1HZE30H 33,980 57,330 = -
31 to 60 days 31HZ=60H 8,975 22,655 = -
61 to 90 days 61HZ=90H 3,552 8,712 = -
Over 90 days 90H A £ 3,319 9,438 = -
225,745 289,156 = =
Less: Provision for impairment & : FEMRE F 2 B E B R
of trade receivables (2,910) (6,254) - -
Trade receivables, net FEWER - F5E 222,835 282,902 = =
Other receivables H fth eI GRIR 22,280 29,627 223 2,625
245,115 312,529 223 2,625

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March 2014, trade receivables from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 65.0% (2013: 46.7%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group's approach of managing credit risk is disclosed in
Note 3.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013/2014
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HHE
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)5 42 FE IS 57065.0% (2013 : 46.7%) > A& E
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12 Trade and other receivables (continued)

13

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivable balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

A1 ¥5 ¥k == Pif 5E

12 ERERKEMEKRIIE @)

7N £2 B 1 WS R e Lt B MR R TR A R R T DA
THEHSIR -

Group Company
rEE AT

2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong dollars BT 7,771 6,996 223 2,625

Renminbi AR 43,096 61,668 = -

Us dollars e 193,115 235,761 — -

Others Hity 1,133 8,104 = -

245,115 312,529 223 2,625

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the REBRKEFTREREBESOT
Group are as follows:
Group
rEE

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$'000

Beginning of the year F4) 6,254 5,743
(Reversal of provision)/provision BE ([ 5), /B

for impairment (2,376) 4,056

Receivables written off as uncollectible 7~ AJ Yz [E] 7 fE U & Fih 64 (986) (3.553)

Exchange differences M 5, Z= 5 18 8

End of the year FR 2,910 6,254

The impairment provision made during the year has been included in the
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, derivative financial instruments mainly
represented foreign exchange forward contracts and the amounts are
denominated in US dollars.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts at 31 March 2014 are HK$543,060,000 (2013:
HK$34,929,000). These foreign exchange forward contracts are held for
trading and are expected to mature at various dates within 20 months
(2013: 12 months).

13

EREL 2 REREEHARA R ERSRY
—BRRATE K e o

TTE€mI A
720144 201338310 fT1E €@ T A+
DIEINERIIGY)  ESFBEUETIIER -

2014638318 + REHIERBEHZ A
5 78 % %A /3543,060,0005% 7T.(2013 : 34,929,000
BIL) c RERFIEEB 2 INERBEHNTEHK
7201E A (2013 = 1218 ) AR B HAZ| HA -

2013/2014 £ BT SEEZERERQT
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14 Other financial assets at fair value through profit

14 BAFEFAEBESNEMMKEE

or loss
Group
AEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Listed equity securities and FTTREIZIFRREES
investment funds 8,984 4,633

The fair value of all equity securities at fair value is based on their
current bid prices in an active market. Other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are denominated in the following currencies:

RAFENEH2BREDS 2 AFENIRE
HIEERTSEN 2 EREETE - RATE
NSRS )RR T A B A 5 R

Group

AEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong dollars PETT 1,317 1,206
Renminbi AR 6,657 1,105
US dollars ETT 1,010 2,322
8,984 4,633

15 Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
deposits

15 BERREEEYRBEEARTENR

Group Company
rEE AT

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash at bank and on hand |ITERRIER® 172,818 419,381 341 782
Short-term bank deposits 2 ARITIF 3K 296,034 22,552 = =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 468,852 441,933 341 782
Pledged bank deposits BEIPRITIFR - 11,499 - =
468,852 453,432 341 782

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was approximately
2.8% (2013: 1.5%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity
of 43 days (2013: 26 days). At 31 March 2013, the pledged bank deposits
did not carry interest with an average maturity of 45 days.

9(0 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013/2014

RHRITEARERNEZN AT F2.8E (2013
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Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
deposits (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits are denominated in

15 BERREEBYRBEARTENR

(%)

Re kRSB RAERRITERATIE

the following currencies: K5I BR
Group Company
rEH RAF]

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong dollars BT 10,323 28,903 341 782
Renminbi AR 339,843 133,770 - -
US dollars ET 114,492 265,528 - -
Others Htb 4,194 25,231 - -
468,852 453,432 341 782

At 31 March 2014, approximately HK$40,302,000 (2013: HK$63,411,000)
of the Group's cash and cash equivalents placed with banks in Mainland
China were denominated in Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible
currency in the international market and the repatriation of which is
subject to foreign exchange control regulations of Mainland China.

No bank deposits were pledged as security for the Group's banking
facilities as at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$11,499,000).

Trade and other payables

As at 31 March 2014, the ageing analysis of trade payables by past due

20143 4318 » & % B %940,302,0007% 7T
(2013 : 63,411,0007% 7T ) 75 AR A B /A 3 #R 77
ZHRERBSEEBWAAREIER  MARE
WIEREMISER R R EYE - HAFHZH
A 3t 5N B Il 525 4 FIT PR )

R201453 8318 @ WERITER T NIEHE
ABAEERITRE 252013 ¢ 11,499,000

ABIL) °

16 FEMS

ERREMENKE

R201453 8310 - BB AFEZEAER

date is as follows: ZERE DTN
Group Company
rEE F N

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Current & HA 106,939 134,657 = -
1 to 30 days 1HZE30H 43,762 22,117 = -
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 2,295 5,722 = -
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H 1,881 1,976 = -
Over 90 days 90H A I 8,151 3755 = -
Trade payables FERE 163,028 168,227 = =
Accruals and other payables FETE B N B At & A~ 5RIR 113,032 107,797 6,707 12,037
276,060 276,024 6,707 12,037

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables
approximate their fair values.

ARERE 2 B B R e E A FE A5 0B 2 AR T {E £
HAYERE -

2013/2014 £ BT SEEZERERQT
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Trade and other payables (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

16 ENERRHEMESNREE)

AEBZERNERREMENFIRGR ZRE
EATHERESIRR -

Group Company
AEE P NN

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong dollars BT 36,797 48,139 6,707 12,037
Renminbi AR 191,647 199,284 - -
US dollars =TT 43,878 26,006 - -
Other currencies HuE® 3,738 2,595 = -
276,060 276,024 6,707 12,037

Bank borrowings

At 31 March 2014, the Group did not have any bank borrowing. At 31
March 2013, bank borrowings of approximately HK$32,138,000 were
secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment (Note 6)
and land use rights (Note 8). The remaining was jointly guaranteed by the
Company and a non-controlling shareholder. The bank borrowings bear
interest rate at approximately 5.2%.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their fair
values. The bank borrowings are repayable within one year and are
denominated in the following currencies:

17 $RITEBE

M2014F3 8318 » A B W &AM B IT &
B o 7201343 A31H © $R17(E & 4932,138,000
BITUAEBE TYWE - BE K& & E6)
Kt (E AR E8) BIKIE o 82 THERITE
BHARRE - ZIEEEREHERER - R1T
BEIRFRYAE52ETS

RITEE 2 FHEREAFERS - RITEE
ER—FAEE - WATHERETIEE

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong dollars I - 10,000
Renminbi AR¥E - 32,138
= 42,138

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013/2014
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18 Deferred income tax 18 EEZLEFTER
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under BLEMSHRABEER T REZRVBNR
the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted RAHEROREERM R ELEGGE -

by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BEMSHEERAEERITHRIBAERET
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax RIBBER G AR 6l TER B HEHE KR
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal A HER—MISKE AR - 50 B8
authority. HiH o
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Deferred income tax assets REFTIS T E E 4,189 238
Deferred income tax liabilities REFSHAE (1,967) (759)
2,222 (521)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: EEFFEHREE 28 FEEmT -
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4A1H (521) (367)
Deferred income tax credited/(charged) MA4RA EE U SR FHEKID,/
to consolidated statement of (Z88) 2 IEREFR S (MI7E26)
comprehensive income (Note 26) 2,754 (154)
Exchange differences ME 5 = (11) -
At 31 March M3A31H 2,222 (521)

2013/2014 £  ELSEEZERERLT 93
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Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the
year are as follows:

Decelerated tax

18

IEIEFR IS B (&)

FRREMSHEERAE(ER—RK AL
tER 2 AR IHAT) < E T -

Deferred income tax assets depreciation Tax losses Provisions and others Total
EEFEREE REBERE BHEER BRER A EH
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
At 1 April R4A1H 1 206 237 113 = - 238 319
(Charged)/credited to Rra2ERGEERS
consolidated statement of (X))
comprehensive income (1) (205) (237) 124 4,200 - 3,962 (81)
Exchange differences BN ES = = = = (11) = (1) =
At 31 March M3A318 = 1 = 237 4,189 - 4,189 238
Accelerated tax
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation Fair value gain Others Total
EEFEBas MEBIE S E DYERE Hit EH
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HKS$'000 HKS$'000  HKS$'000
At 1 April m4R18 (731) (575) - (83) (28) (28) (759) (686)
(Charged)/credited to R s 2ERGERF
consolidated statement of (8H) /&
comprehensive income (1,208) (156) - 83 - - (1,208) (73)
At 31 March MW3A318 (1,939) (731) = - (28) (28)  (1,967) (759)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of HK$6,299,000 (2013: HK$4,583,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$25,709,000 (2013: HK$18,333,000) that can be carried
forward against future taxable income, of which HK$24,203,000 will
expire in five years and the remaining amount has no expiry date.

As at 31 March 2014, deferred income tax liabilities have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries, as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that no material temporary differences will be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013/2014

EIEFTSHE EE SR BB B AR R Al i FE 7
HERABBEMNBZ BRI TERRIBEBEE
o REBERERBELFNSIEE 56,299,000
75 70(2013 : 4,583,000/ 7C) * BAEESES
25,709,0007% 75 (2013 : 18,333,000/ 7T ) © % &
BLEA FAE  WKERRAIER b &
724,203,000 T R A FE RN E R - M E %S
EER& =N

M2014F3 8318 ' ASBEVERETHB A
Al Z AR E IR BT R 2 B ERELEATS
afE BAASERE TR E=EER 2
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Share capital 19 KA
2014 2013
Number of shares Nominal value Number of shares Nominal value
RAHE EfE ROBE HfE
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Authorised: BT
- ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each - BREEETZERR 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
— ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each ~BREE0E T LER
Beginning of the year F4] 412,443 41,244 410,139 41,014
Exercise of share options during the year  4F P77 AR 1 7,416 142 2,304 230
End of the year FR 419,859 41,986 412,443 41,244

During the year, 7,416,000 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued
upon exercise of the share options at an aggregate consideration of
HK$8,774,000. These shares rank pari passu in all respects with the
existing shares.

Share options

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
which complied with Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012, an ordinary
resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme. Under the share
option schemes, the Company may grant options to any eligible employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director), any
non-executive director, any shareholder, any supplier and any customer of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest, and any other party having
contributed to the development of the Group to subscribe for shares in
the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

20

FRN - EBEREEITFE177,416,0000 ™
B0.1B L 2 & fn + 2R (B 58,774,000/ It °
ZEBROEMAETEYEBRERNEERS

MRS o

B

RIE AR QB R200268F21H BB 2 LB R
HE - ADRIEMTAEBRATES LR A
([ ETAB D E17ZRE 2 B2 ([ &5
2| ]) o ARAEF201258 3B 217 2 FERBF
AE L BRTRRARRURNITERETS
([Fhar8l D)W IEEETE - RIRMEARAETE
RNABAAWARA R SKEERH B QR SRS
EEAKEARFEAEAREZ FAEEZE
AEEREB(EHILEN  2ETARTE
F) FAERTES - FARE - EAHEE
BARAEREE  REANSEHEELERZ
I E A TR BRI A RB AR BRG -
WEFTH KRR D BB IBA R BT 2 B BT
NEEZ30% °

RBESHARAESSETE - XA TERN
THHEZ&RE

(a) BN ENE BEBZME R RERMT
Z T
(b) MR EEENEBRAERS B EBR

P B RERAZFHRTE &

R EE °

2013/2014 3 ETSESXERERAT
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20 Share options (Continued)

96

Movements of share options under the Old Scheme during the year were

20 BRE®)
FREABET ZBREZSHNT :

as follow:
Lapsed/
Subscription Exercised cancelled
price Beginning during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period per share  of the year the year the year the year
=70 FRERY
ZHEBH 1TEH REEE F4) FRITE B FHR
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
BT T & T 1% F 1% T &
22/05/2007 22/05/2008 — 21/05/2017 1.98 11,500 700 - 10,800
(Note i)
(B &ED
28/03/2012 28/03/2013 — 27/03/2022 1.10 15,072 6,716 1,276 7,080
(Note i)
(Bt 3T
28/03/2014 — 27/03/2022 1.10 6,000 - - 6,000
(Note ii)
(B =Eii)
28/03/2015 — 27/03/2022 1.10 8,546 - 108 8,438
(Note iii)
(B =Eiii)
29,618 6,716 1,384 21,518
Notes: s

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of

grant.

The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of

grant.

The options were subject to a vesting period of three years from the date of

grant.
For the year ended 31 March 2014, the weighted average closing price of

the shares immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised
was HK$2.60.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2013/2014

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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20 Share options (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted were as follows:

A1 ¥5 ¥k == Pif 5E

20 fBERAE (4

MisE < (&)
(v) AXFBRMONEZBRAERLE B ATER A
FHRERIBZWHEOT

Closing price per share immediately
before the date of grant (HK$)

Date of grant A8 EERHERZERUTEGET)
22 May 2007 200745A822H 1.95
28 March 2012 201243 A28H 1.10

At 31 March 2014, outstanding options of 23,880,000 were exercisable.

Options exercised during the year were issued at the corresponding
subscription price.

The Company has used the Binomial Model for assessing the fair value of
the share options granted. According to the Binomial Model, the fair value
of the options granted during the year ended 31 March 2012 measured as at
the date of grant of 28 March 2012 was approximately HK$0.273, HK$0.288
and HK$0.294 per share, respectively, taking into account various factors,
variables and assumptions which include the following:

(i)  exercise multiple was applied to the historical information of the
option holders, on average, would exercise their options when the
stock price is 160% of the exercise price;

(ii)  the risk-free interest rate used was 1.27%;

(i)  the expected volatility was about 43%; and

(iv)  the expected annual dividend yield of 5.73%.

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously
compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices
over the last ten years. During the year, the fair value of the options granted
on 28 March 2012 which had been charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income amounted to HK$1,439,000 (2013: HK$6,058,000).
The remaining unamortised fair value of the options will be charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in future years.

As at 31 March 2014, no share options were granted under the New
Scheme.

(vi) 72201443 318 - 23,880,000/% 7 17 15 B A% 42
A FITfE o

(vi) FRABTTEBEECD RAERBE T UNET -

(viii) ARARRAZBARNFHAREHBREZD
FE - BEZIEANER - REZE20123A318
IEFER L BRE 2 A FE(Z201243 8288
A E) 5 R4 AFAR0.2737 T + 0.288
ABTLR0.294ETT - WEA REZHERRE - #HR
R - BiE -

() BEENERIITESH BUAFE
B BRESEATFHERREEDNTE
B2 160% 51715 FE AR A

(i) FETEZERBRFEARI27E

(i) TEHARRER B LKL A43% K&

(iv) TEFFEEREWEER5.73% °

REFEEE IRM Bl MEIRAEZE 5T &K 18 IR
BETFEFSAREZAFTINEL - FR - R
201243 A28 B & H 2 BB AR i A 1B /431,439,000
75 75(2013 : 6,058,000/ 7T ) + ER4RE 2 E K
AP - BREZ AT REHAFEBR
RRBFERREEEREREZ P HIB -

R2014F3A318 - EBE N EH D ER
e o
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21 Other reserves 21 Hitif#e
Group
r5E
Property  Capital  Statutory Share
Share revaluation  reserves  reserves Investment option  Exchange
premium reserve (a) (b)  reserves  reserves  reserves Total
NEER X A RE BRE B
R BE i fEe@  RED) 1 13 & ag
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
At 1 April 2012 R2012E4B1R 98,759 1,041 30,575 6,321 21 6,754 74,088 217,517
Currency translation differences EAZER = = = = - - 2,59 2,504
Fair value gains on AL ERREE AT EYE
available-for-sale financial assets = = = = 280 - - 280
Employee share option scheme: EEBRETE :
- Value of employee services —EEMRHEE - - - - - 6,058 - 6,058
~ Proceeds from shares issued —fIEREREm TR
upon exercise of share options LFTETE 2304 = = = = - - 2304
- Exercise of share options —{TeiEmkE 630 = = = = (630) = =
Release of investment reserves I A4k BT A R
upon disposal of available-for-sales BTk 2 & e
financial assets = = = = 8 = - 8
At 31 March 2013 R2013%3431A 101,693 1,041 30,575 6,321 267 12,182 76,682 228,761
Currency translation differences ERZER - - - - - - 6,987 6,987
Fair value losses on AR ENBEEZ ATEEE
available-for-sale financial assets - - - - (399) - - (399)
Employee share option scheme: EERREE
~ Value of employee services —-EERBKZERE = = = = = 1,439 = 1,439
- Proceeds from shares issued —fifREREmETRG
upon exercise of share options pdif s 8,032 = = = = = - 8,032
~ Exercise of share options ~{T{E R E 2,242 - - - - (%) - -
At 31 March 2014 R2014%3831R 111,967 1,041 30,575 6,321 (132) 11,379 83,669 244,820

08 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013/2014
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21 HiufEiE®)

Company
b NG|
Share Contributed Share option
premium surplus (c) reserves Total
R EE BRER( BRERE Fik]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
At 1 April 2012 R2012F4818 98,759 138,800 6,754 244,313
Employee share option scheme: EEERETE
— Proceeds from shares issued upon — IR BRAREm TR R
exercise of share options ZFTR A 2,304 - - 2,304
— Value of employee services —-EERKZEE - - 6,058 6,058
— Exercise of share options — TR 630 = (630) =
At 31 March 2013 R2013F3A31H 101,693 138,800 12,182 252,675
Employee share option scheme: EEERETE
— Proceeds from shares issued upon — PR AREm TR R
exercise of share options LTS 5IA 8,032 - 8,032
— Value of employee services -EERBZEE - 1,439 1,439
— Exercise of share options —{T{b AR E 2,242 (2,242)
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A831H 111,967 138,800 11,379 262,146
PEE

Notes:

Capital reserves represent the difference between the nominal value of
the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount
of the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through
an exchange of shares pursuant to the Group's reorganisation in March
2000, and certain amounts of statutory reserves and retained earnings of a

subsidiary capitalised as paid-up capital in prior years.

Statutory reserves represent general reserve fund required to be set up
pursuant to the laws of Mainland China for the Group's subsidiaries in
Mainland China. The general reserve fund can only be used to make up for
losses incurred, increase registered capital or use for collective welfare of

employees.

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value
of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of a
subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant to the Group's

reorganisation in March 2000.

(a)

2013/2014 F3R

BARREERA AR METEBR 2 @EERE
2000F3 A AR B EABITIRMUBE 2B A
RIRAEBR DR EENZ 28 WERBEX
F—HHBEAREREABRRBRAZ AT FE
RRBEMNzETEE -

ZAERBEARBETEAMEESASERH
Az HTEARRLE —RERBES - — R
REESETRERMER  EBINEMERSK
RERB 2 SBEF -

BEHRBIEARAFAZFTEBR 2 AEERE
200043 A 2N 5 [ 25 A0 3 1T 4R B T e B — P BT /B
ARIBEFEZERE -
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22 Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, marketing
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other electronic

22 KA

AEBIZEBRRG  BE HERHKEEE
BEM ROREOGEFERRFIENE - F

products and property holding. Revenues recognised during the year are RFER WAL
as follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Sales of merchandise EmiHE 1,518,264 1,599,149
Rental income EEON 175 170
Management fees ERE 144 133
Handling income BEWA 6,693 6,099
1,525,276 1,605,551
23 Other gains — net 23 Hinhzs — F5E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fair value losses on derivative PTEemI A A TEER
financial instruments (6,955) (43)
Fair value losses on other financial BATFESFABZNEMGHMBEE
assets at fair value through Z N FEERE
profit or loss (234) (354)
Fair value gains on WEWME 2 N TEKE
investment properties 260 960
Net gains/(losses) on disposal of HEMEHETBKEE W
available-for-sale financial assets (E18) 58 197 (16)
Net gains/(losses) on disposal of other — H &K A FET ABIEH
financial assets at fair value Hi & Ez Wz
through profit or loss (E518) 588 92 (654)
Net gains on disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment Rz W F R 76 99
Net realised gains from PTESMIAEZE
derivative financial instruments BRI SRR 20,046 12,750
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains PE N (&) W F 58 (9,016) 2,148
4,466 14,890

100 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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24 Operating profit 24 RERA

Operating profit is stated after charging and crediting the following: KRN BB R A TR IE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Auditor’s remuneration Z SN B & 1,736 1,376
Amortisation of land use rights b {55 R R S SE 300 291
Cost of inventories TFERA 1,244,087 1,277,310
Depreciation of property, Y - BB REE
plant and equipment ZITE 33,484 28,748
Government grants IR A 7 B (894) (212)
Operating lease rental of premises Y2 & EBHNES 6,748 7,285
Provision for impairment of RERERE
inventory obsolescence 20,941 2,840
(Reversal of provision)/provision for W E FRE
impairment of trade receivables (E18), Bt (2,376) 4,056
Staff costs (including directors’ EELH(BREESHE)
emoluments) (Note 30) (Ft3E30) 388,507 369,054
25 Finance income and costs BB AR R A
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest income from REATZHEWA
— available-for-sale financial assets — A EM B EE 271 245
— bank deposits —RITIFER 4,926 6,118
Finance income AMEWRA 5,197 6,363
Finance costs A& KA (1,414) (2,621)
Net finance income LA WA FE 3,783 3,742

26 FTERiXH
AARRBERERE EE2016F38 A1t -

26 Income tax expenses

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March 2016.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: BERENEHBEERBREFAREBELESRE
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from B8 2 b ST ERR TR A1 1416.5% (2013 < 16.5%)
Hong Kong for the year. The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are REFE - REERFEARMZWEQRER
subject to the China Corporate Income Tax at a rate of 25% (2013: 25%) (5T FEER B & A BA25% (2013 : 25%) T K X
on estimated assessable profits. B EEFTEH o
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26 Income tax expenses (Continued) 26 FREBIXH#)
#irE 2 ERm T AR AFIE S RIS

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current income tax B EFTISH
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENEHR 12,915 17,288
— China corporate income tax — BTSN 5,228 6,654
— Over-provision in prior years — R FAFEE (37) (170)
18,106 23,772
__Deferred income tax (Note 18) _ EEFGH(MIEETS) @754 154
15,352 23,926

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

A ER B e BR B B AN ER 2 BT S B B AN A 7]
BRI MEAEZERmERZERNMT
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country of the Company as follows:

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit before income tax R PR A5 556 Al A 81,295 142,808
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% 1% %16.5%(2013 : 16.5% )5t &
(2013: 16.5%) 13,414 23,563
Effect of different taxation rates R AR B A S R R 2 R 2
in Mainland China (840) 2,816
Income not subject to taxation AT 2 B/A (1,240) (1,828)
Expenses not deductible for DRI BEARBE IR 2 52 1
taxation purpose 1,665 1,923
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2 B EE 1,651 1,487
Over-provision in prior years TEBFEEE (37) (170)
Others HAit 739 (3,865)
Income tax expenses PRS2 15,352 23,926
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27 Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 27 AATRERZE AEGERF
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in 4959,656,0007% 7T (2013 : 82,525,000/ T ) Z A
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately NEIRER B AEMRRENE G ARR B8 7% H
HK$59,656,000 (2013: HK$82,525,000). = o
28 Dividends 28 B2
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim dividend paid of HK4.0 cents B B S AR AR 4.0 1L
(2013: HK3.0 cents) per (2013 = 3.01L)
ordinary share 16,771 12,304
Proposed final dividend of HK5.0 RN AR B AT B ARS. 078 1L
cents (2013: HK5.0 cents) (2013 : 5.0711L)
per ordinary share 20,993 20,783
Special interim dividend paid of BRI A AR BB AR @ AR 2. 078 (1L
HK2.0 cents (2013: HK4.0 cents) (2013 : 4.0711L)
per ordinary share 8,386 16,406
Proposed special final dividend of fEaE e Bl R B AR S AR AR 4.0 1L
HK4.0 cents (2013: HK7.0 cents) (2013 : 7.0741L)
per ordinary share 16,794 29,097
62,944 78,590

29

At a meeting held on 26 June 2014, the Board of Directors recommended
a final dividend per ordinary share of HK5.0 cents and a special final
dividend of HK4.0 cents per ordinary share amounting to a total of
HK$37,787,000. The proposed dividends are not reflected as a dividend
payable in these consolidated financial statements, and will be reflected
as appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 March 2015.

Earnings per share
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

29

M2014F6 A6 BT 2 8F L EF 2R
R RERAR B TR E @ ARS.08 (1L - A R IF
B K BB AR B AR L @ R4A0E (L - BE A H
37,787,000 7T - KR E T EEZZHRE W
EHRERPIIEERMGIRE - MR AE E2015
FIANBLUEFEZRBEFDE -

BREF

X

BRERBNTIAGB AR ERERA A1
MERAFAD BT EBRZ INETFIHBGETE -

2014 2013
Profit attributable to equity holders SFEANTRERAE A
of the Company (HK$'000) 2w A (FAT) 62,318 114,312
Weighted average number of ordinary 2277 E @R~
shares in issue (in thousands) IniEFE(FAR) 418,153 410,158
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) G EAZEF (AL 14.9 27.9
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29 Earnings per share (Continued)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category of

dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. For the share options,
a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the

subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of

shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

29 BREBR#)
w8

BREERNDBARRAEECETLBR
B8 1T 2 & B AR T B N T 15 BGH

H-ARAE-—REBEEHES:

A o BNRE AR

1% IEREmME - DREEARITEBRAEMR
MREE . EREEREETRATFEREZ
BD#B (ARRB RN FEHSFHEEE)M
EHEE - EXEHE 2RO A BRRBRE

BITERBETZROBBES -

2014 2013
Profit attributable to equity holders HEBARRRERE A
of the Company (HK$'000) s F) (FAT) 62,318 114,312
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ B Z71TE @A Z
shares in issue (in thousands) IniEFHE(FAR) 418,153 410,158
Adjustment for potential dilutive S ARITE R A E 2
effect in respect of outstanding B B
share options (in thousands) Z A (FRR) 14,933 14,727
Weighted average number of ordinary st EERE#EAF 2
shares for diluted earnings per @A hnE g (FAR)
share (in thousands) 433,086 424,885
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FRESER R (BL) 14.4 26.9
30 Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 30 EEXH(BEEE#HD)
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Wages and salaries ITERHF® 353,656 334,719
Other staff benefits Hih 8 TaEF 15,551 14,715
Pension costs — defined BRREZH —E5HE
contribution plans (Note 33) ka8 (H1EE33) 17,861 13,562
Value of employee share options EEBERECEE 1,439 6,058
388,507 369,054
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30 EEZH(BREEEME) (2)

30 Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)

(Continued)

(a) Directors and senior management’s emoluments

(a) EBREREEEME

Pension
Discretionary costs and
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses  share options Total
BHR&X
EEpng e e BERA RERE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
For the year ended BZ2014%38318
31 March 2014 LFE
Executive Directors HIES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny B
(Chief Executive Officer) (fTB8H) - 1,987 1,176 6 3,169
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R4 - 1,931 1,176 6 3,113
Chow Man Yan, Michael AxE - 1,931 1,176 15 3,122
Yuen Chi King, Wyman BT - 1,229 606 305 2,140
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BIE - 1,229 606 305 2,140
Chow Lai Fung EER = 1,229 606 305 2,140
Independent Non-Executive B JFHI{TES
Directors
Chang Chu Cheng (Note) b1 200 - - - 200
Che Wai Hang, Allen HgE 200 - - - 200
Lee Yiu Pun R, 200 - - - 200
For the year ended BZ2013F38318
31 March 2013 tFE
Executive Directors HIES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny Zlyd
(Chief Executive Officer) (TH#) - 1,892 2,310 17 4319
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R4 - 1,839 2,310 117 4,266
Chow Man Yan, Michael BAxf - 1,839 2,310 132 4,281
Yuen Chi King, Wyman R - 1,170 1,190 855 3,215
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BB - 1,170 1,190 855 3,215
Chow Lai Fung AR - 1,170 1,190 855 3,215
Independent Non-Executive B FFH{TE=
Directors
Chang Chu Cheng (Note) E (S 200 - - - 200
Che Wai Hang, Allen HiglE 200 - - - 200
Lee Yiu Pun RN, 200 - - - 200

Note: Dr. Chang Chu Cheng resigned on 1 April 2014.

MisE : SRR £R2014F4 A1 BBHE -
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30 Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2013: five) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two individuals during the

year are as follows.

30 EEZH(BREEEME) (2)

(b) EEEEHAL

FRAAEEBRSFRABALTEBE=S
(2013: AR)ES  BEZHMEER LR
2z - FREMBTMABAL
ZHBEmT o

2014

HK$'000

Wages and salaries ITERF® 5,300
Pension costs — defined contribution BAREXH—FE5E

plans (Note 33) kTSI (F7E33) 42

Value of employee share options EEBREZEE 147

5,489

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned
band of HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000.

106 Fuijikon Industrial Holdings Limited
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31 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated

Notes to the Financial Statements

31
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RERTRERME
(a) XFEERFRALETHRE2REZ

from operations: AR -
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit for the year REF @ 65,943 118,882
Adjustments for: AT EBEELFE
— Amortisation of land use rights — 3 {5 A 2 B 300 291
— Depreciation of property, plant —M% - HBER
and equipment B ZIE 33,484 28,748
— Finance costs —BE R 1,414 2,621
— Finance income —EE WA (5,197) (6,363)
— Income tax expenses — B H 15,352 23,926
— Fair value losses on derivative —PTEE@IA
financial instruments N EEE 6,955 43
— Fair value losses on other —RATFEFG ABRD
financial assets at fair value Hih B EE
through profit or loss NEEE 234 354
— Fair value gains on —REMERTE 2 W
investment properties (260) (960)
— Net (gains)/losses on disposal —HERHHEMKEEE
of available-for-sale z(Wzs) /BB E
financial assets (197) 16
— Net (gains)/losses on disposal —HER AT EFAERZH
of other financial assets Hin B EE 2
at fair value through () EEFE
profit or loss (92) 654
— Net gains on disposal of —HEVE  BER
property, plant and equipment R W FFE (76) (99)
— Provision for impairment of —RERERE
inventory obsolescence 20,941 2,840
— (Reversal of provision)/provision —EBRERRE
for impairment of (EI#), Bt
trade receivables (2,376) 4,056
— Value of employee share options —EEBREZEE 1,439 6,058
— Exchange differences —[ERZER 2,712 =
140,576 181,067
Changes in working capital: LiBELE
— Inventories —=FE 5,801 (32,200)
— Trade receivables —EER 62,671 (50,506)
— Other receivables — E fb fE W FRIE 12,593 (12,558)
— Trade payables —ERER (7,474) 16,571
— Accruals and other payables — [EETE B R E A T FRIE 1,001 20,193
— Deferred income —EEUA (503) (1,370)
Cash generated from operations KEEDIS2RE 214,665 121,197

2013/2014 F3R
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31 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 31 ZERERERKHT (&)

(Continued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing activities during the (b) FAMEZTBHRB SN :
year:
Share capital and
share premium Bank borrowings
R R 1R E BITEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4F1H 142,937 139,773 42,138 40,541
Issue of shares upon exercise ~ FE{TEEEARE M
of share options BITRGD 8,774 2,534 - -
Employee share option scheme: {& B BEf% s+ 2 :
— Exercise of share options —{TR AR 2,242 630 = -
New bank borrowings FERITEE - - 50,441 46,900
Repayment of bank borrowings B2 R1TfEE = - (93,228) (45,510)
Exchange differences AR - = 649 207
At 31 March M3A31H 153,953 142,937 = 42,138
32 Commitments 32 A¥E
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXREISE
The Group had the following authorised and contracted capital RNEB 7 EENDEINERNEENT -
commitments:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
Acquisition of machinery and equipment 3% B # i & 22 4 4,557 13,088

(b) Commitments under operating leases

(b) REHERE

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under RNEBIREZ BRI bR 2 LS HE RN R

various non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

REMZEESERBENAT

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$'000

Not later than one year THEE1F 5,304 4,531
Later than one year and not FBIE1FE

later than five years 11,826 13,172

Later than five years A5 9,187 11,642

26,317 29,345
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33

34

Notes to the Financial Statements

Pension obligations

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. The assets of
the fund are held separately from those of the Group and are managed by
independent professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer's and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China. The employees contribute up to 8% of their basic
salaries, while the Group contributes to retirement plans approximately at
12% to 14% of the basic salaries of its employees in Mainland China, and
has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

Financial guarantee

At 31 March 2014, the Company had provided guarantees in respect
of banking facilities of its subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$155,700,000 (2013: HK$155,700,000). No facilities were utilised by
the subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$37,238,000).

33

34

A1 %5 ¥ 2= Pif s

RARSEME

AEELRFEERESEG —RBUEREATE
Bz BT EABEe ([ RESF
g EerBEERAKEHEMEED R
B UHBUYERESKEEE - RERES
e AREREEBHALRHIMERIEERE
PIFTER Z BB H & 25%%F A Mzt 8/¢F H
Ko BEREBEHN 2 LRBAE F1,250%
7T JRA] B RREESMIR o

RIBFEAMERIERRE - AEEREF
BAE 8 B RE B RIRETBIEHHK -
BEAKSREEAFHE Z8%IEL MR - MA
SERARERAREELETPBEANMERERER
e O12%E14% 2 58 - B AR EERK
L RKE N Z BB S HE R EAARE - RIK
BE 2 ARKE BB RE B 2 RIKE
SIHE -

PR

MR2014F38318 - AR Al AEWE AR 2R
TR E EE EIR - £ 584 4155,700,0005% 7T
(2013 : 155,700,00078 7T ) ° i /@ 22 7] 7A20144F
3A3TE &S A £ F & (2013 : 37,238,000
PEIT) °
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35 Related party transactions
The Company’s directors consider there is no ultimate holding company

as at 31 March 2014 and 2013.

(a) The following significant transactions were carried out
with related parties:

BEEALRS

120144 2013438318 * AR AIEEZ=R A
WERARIER AR ©

() XEFEBEALZEARZNT :

Name of related party/nature BEALZ 2014 2013
of transaction BB/ MY HK$'000 HK$'000
The Bright Printing Press and Paper Products > BE A =X EN75 4% & /&%
Limited (i) BRAF)
~ Purchases of merchandise —RAAEERESm
from the Group = 20
— Sales of merchandise to the Group —RAAEEHESEm 213 225
- Management fees paid/payable -B/ENAEE
to the Group ZEREBA 12 -
First Success Technology Limited (i) tEZ R ER A ()
— Rental expense paid/payable —AKEE ER
by the Group Pz 837 827
- Management fees paid/payable —-B/ERAEE
to the Group ZEREA 132 120

Note:
(i)  Both companies are wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr.
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, directors of the

Company.

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the above related party

transactions were conducted in the usual course of business of

the Group and in accordance with terms mutually agreed by the
respective parties.
(b) Key management compensation

Key management personnel are the Company's executive directors.
Details of compensation of key management personnel are disclosed
in Note 30 to the financial statements.
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Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
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Head Office and Principal Place of Business

16th Floor, Tower |

Grand Central Plaza

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Bermuda Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd.
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar And Transfer Office

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

Solicitors

Chiu & Partners

40th Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Public Relations Consultant

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
Unit A, 29/F., Admiralty Centre |
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

112 Fuijikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2013/2014

RNEERETEEEME

EBFARLH

A EBEEIE1385%
T R R ES
F1FE1612

BEREFEROBFELTRE

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd.

Canon's Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

ERRDBFEETRE
EBBEBRBERRE

BB BT ERAXER183R
AP LTE1712-171655 65

= EEm

7 RK B ETRI B AT
BABMESEED
BHERIR

KFKRNE221E

e

e HEAREMERSAT
BBREEES1H

& FIKEA40HE

FEAERBRIT
BITRIT(EB)ERDA
{BERTARAA

DNHBERER

MEMEAEBER AR
BT EERIE185
BEFLE—HRIEAE






N\
A SOU\ALD COMPANY

Fujkon

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
EITEBEEEZERERAT

16/F, Tower |, Grand Central Plaza,

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road,

Shatin, N.T., Hong Kong
BERFADHEDBSEEIE138EH BT P RESHE —E1612
Tel £ : (852) 2605 5008

Fax BE : (852) 2694 1338

E-mail ZE : info@fujikon.com

Web-site #831t : http://www.fujikon.com



	Cover

	Inside Cover

	Contents
	Financial Highlights
	Financial Summary
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Statements of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Corporate Information
	Inside Back Cover

	Back Cover


